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For the year ended 31 December

Statement of Comprehensive Income e RER BE+=-—A=+—HLFE
RMB million
AREBET
2014 2013 Changes
—E-mF —F—= 21t
Revenue & 1,379.0 1,767.4 -22.0%
Gross profit EA 141.9 128.8 +10.2%
Operating profit feg=pingl 73.2 77.8 -6.0%
Profit before income tax B P 155 A& T 69.9 65.1 +7.3%
Profit for the year FRm A 57.0 48.5 +17.5%
Profit attributable to shareholders of AN B R AR & A

the Company 47.9 40.0 +19.7%
Earnings per share (RMB) BRAEN (ARE) 0.12 0.13 N/A 71 i A

As at 31 December

Balance Sheet EEBER R+=—A=+-—H
RMB million

AREEET
2014 2013 Changes
—ZE-mE —E—=4F e
Non-current assets IEMBEE 179.8 178.4 +0.8%
Current assets mENE E 368.8 545.0 -32.3%
Current liabilities mEa s (166.1) (368.2) -54.9%
Net current assets MBEEFE 202.7 176.9 +14.6%
Non-current liabilities SERBAE (12.3) 38.1) -67.7%
Net assets FEE 370.2 3171 +16.7%
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Financial Highlights
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Gross Profit Margin of the Group Revenue by Business Segment
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Revenue by Business Segment
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Revenue Analysis: Polyester
Filament Yorn Production
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Gross Profit by Business Segment
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Revenue Analysis: Trading Of Textile-
Related Products
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LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAWS
Loong & Yeung Solicitors
LEGAL ADVISER AS TO PRC LAWS
Tianyuan Law Firm

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

Headquarter and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Office 1616, 16th Floor, Tower Two Lippo Centre,
No. 89 Queensway, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

Website: www.chinaysgroup.com

STOCK CODE
3608

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
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Hong Kong
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Bank of China
The Agricultural Bank of China
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Ever Thrive Global Limited
B BRIRRE R AT
(Incorporated in BVI)

(R RS TR ST)

51.62%

Group Structure
fEEEE

As at 31 December 2014 R-—ZT—WE+—H=+—H

[

Shun Sheng Global Limited
JE B IRBRE PR A F]
(Incorporated in BVI)

( BESaAKsL)

23.38%

Public Shareholders
PRIE

25%

Yongsheng Advanced
Materials Company Limited
KEF MR ARAT]
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands)
(PR SEBEMK)

Stock Code IR A5 : 3608

Yongsheng Advanced
Materials (BVI) Limited
KERFME (BVI) BFRAH]

(Incorporated in BVI)
(REBE 2B S HMARL)

100%

Yongsheng (HK)
International
Co. Limited
KEE (BB BEBRERAR

(Incorporated in HK)
(RB ML)

Nantong Yongsheng
Management Shareholders

MEKBREEERR

100%

Yongsheng Advanced
Materials (HK) Limited
KERFAMEH(FR)ERAT
(Incorporated in HK)
(REBTEMAL)

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng
Dyeing and Finishing
Co. Limited*
TMNER L KBRREGRAT

(Established in PRC)
(PRI )

HUVIS Corporation
KRR EHHUVIS

(Established in Korea)

(PRSI )

Nantong Yongsheng
Fiber Advanced Materials
Co. Limited*

FABEKBREETHAERATF

(Established in PRC)
(R )

100%
Hangzhou Xiaoshan

Yongsheng Foreign Trading
Co. Limited*

PN K BREINE ZBRAT

(Established in PRC)
(R BIRAL)

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng
Chemical Fiber Limited*

FUNEA L KRICEERATF

(Established in PRC)
(R BEIKAL)

* For identification purposes only
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Yongsheng Advanced Materials” or “we”
or “our”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Review Period”).

Yongsheng Advanced Materials has engaged in three principal business
segments includes (1) the production of polyester filament yarn, (2)
the dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric,
and (3) the trading of textile-related products. After years of dedication
and diligence, Yongsheng Advanced Materials has now become a
high technique group of companies integrating science, research,
innovation and efficiency. Differentiated polyester filament yarns produced
by us are usually customized products with special functionalities
and widely recognized for their high value-added, high quality and
competitive pricing by textile manufacturers and home furnishings or
sofa manufactures who secure long term orders with us. By leveraging
on our core research and development expertise, we strive to establish
steady advancement in product innovation to establish advanced and
technological techniques with differentiation, hence further diversifies
our differentiated products. In 2014, we obtained 8 and 9 patents on
differentiated polyester filament yarn and differentiated polyester fabric
dyeing techniques, respectively, we were also recognized as a “Fabric
China Pioneer Plant on Differential Fibers and Yarn-dyed Fabric” and had
obtained a number of industry awards, showcasing the achievements
made by Yongsheng Advanced Materials by focusing on the basics and
its insistency on innovation.

Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

Li Cheng =
Chairman and Executive Director
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MAKING INNOVATIVE BREAKTHROUGHS
AND ESTABLISHING PRODUCTS LEADING
POSITION

In 2014, the Chinese textile industry was unavoidably suffered amidst
the domestic and global economic turmoil. In a competitive operating
environment, we continued to develop new products and expand new
markets by utilizing our excellent research and development capabilities
and focused on product differentiation strategy. The Group was managed
to record steady business growth with an increase in gross profit margin.
During the Review Period, the Group continued to focus on developing
two business segments with higher profit margin — the production of
differentiated polyester filament yarn and the processing of differentiated
polyester fabric, thereby resulted in lower revenue in the trading business
segment and sales of regular polyester filament yarn products. The
overall revenue of the Group decreased by 22.0% to RMB1,379.0 million.
However, the differentiation strategy has effectively enhanced the growth
of the overall gross profit and gross profit margin of the Group and hence
the increase in the net profit. The overall gross profit increased by 10.2%
to RMB141.9 million, while gross profit margin up by 3.0 percentage
points to 10.3%. Profit for the year increased by 17.5% to RMB57.0
million. Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to
RMB47.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 19.7% from last
year. The polyester filament yarn production business and the dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric business remained
the growth engines of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the revenue from the production of polyester filament yarn, the dyeing
and processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric accounted for
33.6% in total of the Group’s total revenue. Operating profit accounted
for 92.1% in total of the Group’s total operating profit, with an operating
profit margin of 17.3%.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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During the Review Period, with respect to the production of differentiated
polyester filament yarn, we adjusted the product structure according to
market demand and put efforts in fabric product development including
high-bulk polyester/nylon GPN products, the first of its kind in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), and PDH elastic fibre series
products. The success of new products facilitated the Group’s expansion
in the applications of polyester filament yarn products, to secure strong
market reputations for our brand name of “Yongsheng” and lay down
foundation for our subsequent product research and development and
product sales. The national chemical fiber industry standards for “Elastic
Polyester DW” ( [ 58 14 & 4 Z= /8 4% | ) in which the Group as the main
drafter, have been officially issued and implemented during the year
which has further enhanced the role of Yongsheng Advanced Materials
in research and development in the industry. Furthermore, our efforts
to upgrade the dyeing and processing techniques also improved the
dyeing quality of differentiated polyester fabric with the view of introducing
more products to fulfill market demand. As a result, we has successfully
increased both our market share and product sales.

In 2014, we implemented plans on rationalizing and improving our plants,
increasing the scale of our plants by adding new production facilities,
promoting production efficiency and reducing production costs. In
particular, the waste water treatment project has been completed during
the year according to the requirements of environmental administration.
The project improved the waste water treatment and energy savings
system, and also further enhanced the competitiveness of the Group’s
products in the market. Apart from our dyeing and processing plant, our
polyester filament yarn production plant located in Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province was also accredited as “National Advanced Technology
Company” in 2014. It not only recognizes the high level of the Group’s
research and development and techniques, but also helps the Group
to enjoy favourable tax concessions. While we are upgrading our
research and development and operating scale, we also strive to
maintain comprehensive and standardized internal control and cost
management. During the year, we further improved the production
and sales processes by focusing on the main targets of “Excellence,
Standardization, Supervision and Reinforcement”. In establishing a fair
internal management system, we has also enhanced the trainings to
our staff and implemented a performance-based incentive scheme to
encourage them to foster corporate cultures and improve the overall
operating efficiency.

Chairman’s Statement
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EMPHASIS ON DIFFERENTIATION
PRODUCTS AND INNOVATION TO MOVE

Although the textile industry in the PRC is pressurized by the continuing
decelerated growth and rising costs, with the accelerated pace of
urbanization development and the continual demand for mid to high-
end textile products by customers who pay attention to personal style
as well as product design and quality, we remain optimistic on the long
term development of the textile market in the PRC. In 2014, the Group
adhered to the objective of “Seizing Opportunities and Making Innovative
Breakthroughs” and made progress amidst the difficult environment.
Looking forward and as a conclusion for the past, with the objective of
providing customers with innovative products satisfying their needs, we
will adopt “Emphasis on Differentiation Products and Innovation to Move”
as our operating strategy, to strengthen the competitive advantages of
the Group and ensure the steady and healthy operational development,
which is based on the operation and management foundation laid down
last year. To tackle complicated and changing market environment both
within and outside the PRC, we will further optimize the internal control
management and facilitate the strategies on sourcing, inventory and
marketing. At the same time, we plan to offer a series of professional
training programs to promote team spirits, enhance production
efficiencies and management standard on the corporate level and reduce
operating risk.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Innovation has been one of the key elements for the success of
Yongsheng Advanced Materials. By leveraging on our strong research
and development capabilities and subject to market demands, we are
dedicated to develop new products and services with high added-value
and high gross profit margin. We will increase the production capacity of
differentiated polyester filament yarn as scheduled. We will also extend
the new chemical fiber plant to scale-up the production of the Group and
optimize its production process and to escalate the production capacity
and operation efficiency. At the same time, we will explore new drivers for
our business growth through directional corporate development, internal
business collaboration and external synergistic acquisition and merger
opportunities, to establish new industrial lineups and enhance the market
share of the Group.

The Group has been reviewing the effectiveness of the existing business
strategies and insisting on making breakthroughs with technology
innovation so as to secure the core competitiveness of Yongsheng
Advanced Materials and support its sustainable development. While
strengthening the research and innovation and optimising the internal
control management, we will also enhance sales, explore new markets
with an aim of establishing Yongsheng Advanced Materials as a world-
class enterprise. To capture the market development opportunities
and maintain the favourable development momentum of differentiated
products, the Group will concentrate its effort on technical reforms and
production capacities upgrades to enhance our brand value and product
quality, thereby broaden the revenue sources and maximize return for
shareholders.

Lastly, | hereby express on behalf of the Board my sincere gratitude to
the shareholders and business partners for their supports, and would
like to take this opportunity to thank our management and staff for their
dedication and professional contribution to the Group.

Li Cheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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MARKET REVIEW

In 2014, there were difficulties and challenges persisted in the macro-
economy as a whole. The price of international bulk commodities
remained low, and the global political environment remained unstable,
while the global economy remained sluggish. According to the data of
National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, the GDP of the PRC in 2014
represented a year-on-year growth rate of only 7.4% which is the slowest
growth rate in 20 years. In light of the continuing slowdown of the PRC
economy and as affected by the rising production costs and weak
consumption sentiment, the PRC textile industry went on to face many
challenges. At the same time, the PRC textile industry is in the middle of
a strategic development period upgrading towards a new market trend
of high-quality, high-end and high added-value, which allows the Group
to capitalize on this opportunity to promote its differentiated polyester
filament yarn products, excellent fabric dyeing and processing techniques
to mid to high-end apparel and fabric producers as well as home
furnishings or sofa manufactures and be widely recognized by them.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in textile-related business in the PRC,
namely (1) the production of polyester filament yarn, (2) the dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric and (3) the trading of
textile-related products. During the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
“Review Period”), the Group continued to focus on differentiated products
with higher gross profit margin and insist on technology innovation, and
achieved stable growth in the Group’s business segments.

During the Review Period, total revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB1,379.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately 22.0%
from approximately RMB1,767.4 million of last year. The decrease in
revenue was mainly attributable to the Group’s strategy of focusing on
differentiated polyester filament yarn products with higher profit margin
which resulted in decrease in revenue of the textile-related products
trading business. The Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin
remained relatively stable. Gross profit increased by approximately 10.2%
to approximately RMB141.9 million from RMB128.8 million of last year,
with gross profit margin of approximately 10.3%. Profit for the Review
Period increased by approximately 17.5% to approximately RMB57.0
million as compared with approximately RMB48.5 million in 2013.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB47.9 million, representing an increase of approximately 19.7% from
approximately RMB40.0 million of last year.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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During the Review Period, the revenue from the production of polyester
filament yarn, the dyeing and processing of polyester filament fabric and
trading of textile-related products accounted for approximately 23.0%,
10.6% and 66.4% of the Group’s total revenue respectively. Operating
profit of the three business segments accounted for approximately
58.0%, 34.1% and 7.9% of the Group’s total operating profit
respectively.

Production of Polyester Filament Yarn

The Group consistently implemented differentiated development
strategies to capture the rising market demand for premium grade
differentiated polyester filament yarns. Revenue of the polyester filament
yarn segment increased by approximately 1.1% to approximately
RMB317.6 million as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. As the Group developed and sold those differentiated products with
higher profit margin proactively during the Review Period, the revenue of
the differentiated products increased by approximately 6.9% from 2013,
contributing to an increase in segment gross profit of approximately
19.4% to approximately RMB69.7 million from 2013, while gross profit
margin increased 3.3 percentage points to approximately 21.9%.

In 2014, the Group made significant breakthroughs in product structure
and application. We have been granted 8 new patents on differentiated
products and successfully developed a series of functional products
and the textile fabrics derived thereon with international level quality. The
national chemical fiber industry standards for “Elastic Polyester DW”
([SB 1 femZE M4 ) set out by the Group as the main drafter, have
been officially implemented during the Review Period. The efforts and
achievements of our team not only increased the sales of the Group, but
also be widely recognized in various aspects. During the Review Period,
the Group obtained industry awards and titles such as the “Product
Development Contribution Award” by China Textile Industry Associations,
the “National Base of the Development on Differential Fibers and Yarn-
dyed Fabric” by China Textiles Development Centre, the “2015/2016
Autumn/Winter Shortlisted Enterprises of Trendy Fabrics of the PRC” by
the appraisal committee of the China International Fabrics Design. The
Group owned two polyester filament yarn production facilities which are
located in Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province (“Yongsheng Chemical Fiber”)
and Nantong, Jiangsu Province (“Nantong Yongsheng”) respectively.
During the Review Period, these production facilities had a total of 30
polyester filament yarn production lines with a total production capacity of
22,000 tonnes per year. Yongsheng Chemical Fiber was also accredited
as “National High and New Tech Enterprise” in 2014.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDN
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Dyeing and Processing of Differentiated Polyester
Fabric

During the Review Period, the Group focused on optimizing dyeing and
processing business and launched new products and services that
are tailored to the specific needs of different customers. This business
segment was thus recorded a satisfactory business growth in spite of the
slowing down of market demands. In 2014, the Group was granted 9
patents on dyeing and processing and made improvement on the dyeing
quality of fabric to meet market demands. At the same time, the sewage
treatment project in the dyeing facilities in Hangzhou City, Zhejiang
Province was completed during the Review Period. The implementation
of the project can help improve the energy-saving and water circulation
facilities of the plant, increase the production capacity of dyeing and
processing business, thereby enhancing the production efficiency and
reducing the production costs of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Group leveraged on the opportunities
brought by the industry consolidation and developed new customers
in Zhejiang to secure the market share of its dyeing and processing
business. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the segment revenue
increased by approximately 14.2% to approximately RMB146.5 million,
with the segment gross profit margin decreased by approximately 0.7
percentage points from last year to approximately 33.8%.

Trading of Textile-Related Products

In 2014, the business environment of the Group’s trading segment
continued to be challenging. Segment revenue was approximately
RMB914.9 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 31.0%. Due to the continuing downturn in both domestic
and international markets, the Group approached existing customers and
expand new client base proactively in order to explore trading business
opportunities of textile-related products. During the Review Period, the
Group adopted prudent trading risk management, including the reduction
of low margin trading (especially for chemical raw materials and cotton
textile materials), trading volume and the shortening of inventory turnover
period. These measures enabled the overall segment profit margin to
stabilize at approximately 2.5%.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014
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PROSPECTS

We look forward to global economic recoveries in 2015, while the
economy of China will enter into a new normalcy of steady growth,
structure optimization and quality improvement. Following the guidelines
set out by the current government policies, and in light of the acceleration
of urbanization and sustained increase in disposable income of citizens,
the Group is convinced that the development direction of the Chinese
textile industry will be oriented towards the expedition of transformation
and upgrade, therefore there is still room for the growth of demands for
mid to high-end textile products.

To that end, the Group has laid down a development blueprint of “Focus
on Differentiation Products and Innovation to Move” to fully capitalize on
the core technological advantages of differentiated products and boost
production capacity, and continuously improve the Group’s profitability.
At the same time, the Group will strengthen research and development,
in particular, the research and development of differentiated products
and dyeing and processing techniques with higher added-value and
competitive advantages, enlarging the Group’s market share. The Group
is collecting its experience of cooperation with well-known academic
institutions and looks forward to more in-depth research and cooperation
opportunities with higher education institutions in 2015 to achieve
another milestone in new materials sectors.

The Group believes that operational structure optimization will help
improve production efficiency and is an important milestone for the long
term development of the Company. Among which, Nantong Yongsheng
will build 2 new differentiated polyester filament yarn production lines in
2015 as scheduled and commence trial production during the second
half of the same year. It is expected that the production capacity of
polyester filament yarn will further increase to meet the demands from
orders of premium or differentiated polyester filament yarn products. The
Group also plans to construct a new plant focusing on the production of
differentiated polyester filament yarn near the existing plant of Yongsheng
Chemical Fiber. The construction of the new plant will be completed in
2015. Furthermore, the Group will optimize the sewage treatment project
of its dyeing facilities to enhance the competitive advantages of the Group
in dyeing and processing techniques. Besides enhancing the production
efficiency and lowering the rising production costs, the gradual expansion
of the production scale of the above facilities also help the Group
capture the clients’ demands for diversified and high-quality differentiated
products, thereby achieving sustained business growth of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDN
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDN

In the future, the Group will continue to focus on the development of
two advantageous businesses — differentiated polyester filament yarn
production and the dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester
filament fabric. The Group will fully capitalize on its extensive experiences
to enhance the technological transformation and production efficiency
so as to maintain the current strong momentum of developments in
differentiated products. Leveraging on the Group’s widely-recognized
research and development capacities, the Group will take market-
oriented approach by launching different kinds of innovative high-end
and functional products and services to expand the Group’s market
share and optimize its product sales network. The Group will analyze
the situation and optimize its internal resources allocation through
stringent internal control and cost management policies to consolidate its
operating capacity. The operational strategies of the Group are based on
the vision of sustainable corporate development and satisfactory returns
to our shareholders.

. Yongsheng Advan
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REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue and
gross profit by our business segment for the year ended 31 December

Financial Review

Bt %5 B &

Wz & EF

TERBNAEEBEZE_T-—MNF+_A=1t—AHLt

FEBEH S HEH

MU as & EFIBRAR -

2014:
Year ended 31 December
BEZ+-A=1+—-HLEE
2014 2013
“E-MNEF % of sales —E-=F % of sales
RMB’000 HEEES RMB'000 HIHER
Revenue U 3% AR®T R HES L ARBTT BBEAL
1) Textile-related products trading (Note) NWHEBEEERES (Hit) 914,927 66.4% 1,325,166 75.0%
2) Polyester filament yarn production (Nots) Q) e RS HEE (WeE) 317,602 23.0% 314,030 17.8%
- Differentiated —Z5lt 266,850 19.3% 249,576 14.1%
~ Regular —%#8 50,752 3.7% 64,454 3.7%
3) Dyeing and processing Y ERMT 146,479 10.6% 128,227 7.2%
1,379,008 100.0% 1,767,423 100.0%
Note: Revenue of trading business in 2013 included sales of raw materials in Wit: —E—=FEHEFNREBIERGRHLEEN
the polyester filament yarn production of RMB4,717,000 (2014 Nil). BRI E 5 A RE4,717,0007T ( = F — P04
Revenue of the Group in 2014 was RMB1,379.0 million, representing AEER —HF R A A RE1,379,000,000
a decrease of 22.0% in revenue. The decrease was mainly contributed T AEE E’\ L|5Z S 222.0% c Wm R P EZERERK
by the decrease in revenue of RMB410.2 million in our textile-related MENBEBAERESEBNRERDARE

products trading business, offset by increase in revenue in dyeing and
processing revenue business and polyester filament yarn production
business by RMB18.2 million and RMB3.6 million, respectively. Details

410,200,0007T °

MEH R & R 0 T 375 2 A ROl R

R EEZEBFHWE D HIE A R ¥18,200,0007T
M AR ¥3,600,0007T AT 15 88 o & 2275 5 2B Ay Uk 25 &

of the fluctuations of revenue in each business segment were discussed BHFBERTE AR
separately in the section below.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-BLEE
2014 2013
—E-MmF GP Margin —T-=F GP Margin
RMB’000 EFR=E RMB’'000 EME
Gross profit EF AR®T R % ARET T %
1) Textlle-related products trading B ERERES 22,693 2.5% 26,211 2.0%
2) Polyester filament yarn production (Nots) 2) MimEApEE (i) 69,687 21.9% 58,370 18.6%
- Differentiated —Z=hl1k 62,905 23.6% 55,584 22.3%
—Regular — % 6,782 13.4% 2,786 4.3%
3) Dyeing and processing JYFEEMINT 49,539 33.8% 44,256 34.5%
141,919 10.3% 128,837 7.3%
KM R R AT
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Gross profit of the Group in 2014 was RMB141.9 million, representing
an increase of 10.2%, mainly contributed by the increase in gross profit
of RMB11.3 million and RMB5.3 million in our polyester filament yarn
production business and dyeing and processing business respectively,
offset by decrease in gross profit of RMB3.5 million in our textile-related
products trading business. Details of the fluctuations of gross profit in
each business segment were discussed separately in the section below.

1)

Trading business

REBRZ-E
JC #A110.2%

BARRERMITEBOEND
11,300,0007T 2 A & #5,300,0007C T8 T 2 % E
MR MNFEBAERE S EHOEFRD
AR #3,500,0007C AT 8K » & 3 H5 0 #E ) B E B
BN T EI S B A o o

1) EZF

£

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-AZ+-ALEE

—HFERHEF A ARE141,900,000
FEARABMOBBEHEEE

BB IMARY

2014 2013
—E-NF % of sales —T-=F % of sales
RMB’000 HEER RMB'000 fHIHER
Revenue [l§: ARETR HED ARBTL HEDL
a) Cotton textle materials (Note j a) R4 RA (H73ti) 373,162 40.8% 428,784 32.3%
b) Chemical raw materials (Note i) b) (L TRE (A7) 393,335 43.0% 816,363 61.6%
¢) Chemical fioer materials (Note i) o (L@ R R (Hazii) 148,430 16.2% 79,047 6.0%
d) Others o Hft - 972 0.1%
914,927 100.0% 1,325,166 100.0%

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-BLEE

2014 2013

—E-MmF —T-=F
RMB’000 GP Margin RMB'000 GP Margin
Gross Profit B ARETR E B ARETFT Ep:
3) Cotton textile materials (Note j) a) THRE (M) 14,608 3.9% 21,051 4.9%
b) Chemical raw materials (Note /) b) (b TRE (A i) 2,736 0.7% 1,622 0.2%
¢) Chemical fiber materials (Note i) o LR (st 5,349 3.6% 3,472 4.4%
d) Others d) Efth - 66 6.8%
22,693 2.5% 26,211 2.0%

Note i Cotton textile materials include cotton, wood pulp, cotton Kiazi: 1@ REARIERE ARG 185 IR AR
pulp, fabrics and cotton yarn. o
Note ii: Chemical raw materials include PET/Nylon chips, PTA and Kiatii: (L TR BHEPET/ EEIH PTAK
MEG. MEG °

Note jii- Chemical fiber materials include spandex, polyester filament Biatii - (EERBBERGS  RiaRGREE-

yarn and staple fibers.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Revenue and gross profit of textile-related products trading
business in 2014 were RMB914.9 million and RMB22.7 million
respectively, representing a decrease of 31.0% and 13.4%
respectively, mainly comprise of the following:

i) Sales volume in cotton textile materials reduced to 29,719
tonnes and the average selling price increased from
RMB12,246/tonne to RMB12,556/tonne. We observed
fewer trading opportunities of cotton in the market during
2014 as compared to 2013 due to the decline in cotton
price. We maintained a gross profit margin of 3.9% in 2014
as compared to 4.9% in 2013 in the trading of cotton textile
materials.

ii) Sales volume in a chemical raw materials reduced to
59,846 tonnes and the average selling price decreased
from RMB8,223/tonne to RMB6,572/tonne. We observed
fewer trading opportunities in PTA and PET/Nylon chips in
the market during 2014 as compared with 2013. Due to
the decline in oil price, we recorded a gross profit margin
of 0.7% as compared to 0.2% in 2013 in the trading of
chemical raw materials.

i) Sales volume in chemical fiber materials increased to
9,423 tonnes and the average selling price decreased
from RMB 26,007/tonne to RMB 15,752/tonne. Due to
the increase in demand for premium grade chemical fiber
materials, including spandex and polyester filament yarns
for production, trading volume for chemical fiber materials
increased in 2014. We recorded a gross profit margin
of 3.6% as compared to 4.4% in 2013 in the trading of
chemical fiber materials.

Polyester filament yarn production business

Financial Review
Bt ¥ B B
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Year ended 31 December

HE+-HA=1+—-RLEE

2014 2013

—E-NEF %ofsales —ET—=% % of sales
RMB’000 hHEEERE RMB’000 IHHER
Revenue g ARET T WESLE ARETT WEDLL
Differentiated =5t 266,850 84.0% 249,576 79.5%
Regular R 50,752 16.0% 64,454 20.5%
317,602 100.0% 314,030 100.0%
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-B=1+—-HLEE

2014 2013

= —E=F
RMB’000 GP Margin RMB’000 GP Margin
Gross Profit E7 ARBT R EFE  ARETT ER=
Differentiated =5k 62,905 23.6% 55,584 22.3%
Regular B 6,782 13.4% 2,786 4.3%
69,687 21.9% 58,370 18.6%

Revenue and gross profit of polyester filament yarn production
business in 2014 were RMB317.6 million and RMB69.7 million
respectively, representing an increase of 1.1% and 19.4%
respectively, mainly comprise of the following:

The increase in polyester filament yarn sales by RMB3.6 million
was mainly attributable to the increase in sales of differentiated
products by RMB17.3 million, which was offset by decrease in
sales of regular products of RMB13.7 million. Consistent with
our strategy to focus on differentiated products with higher gross
profit margin, the percentage of the revenue derived from sales of
differentiated polyester filament yarn increased from 79.5% in 2013
to 84.0% in 2014. As a result, our gross profit margin increased
from 18.6% in 2013 to 21.9% in 2014.

i) Sales volume in differentiated polyester filament yarn
increased 16.4% from 13,057 tonnes to 15,195 tonnes.
Due to the increase in demand for premium grade polyester
filament yarns for production, especially for SPH, CEY, REN,
CEl and SSY, the revenue and volume for differentiated
polyester filament yarn increased sharply in 2014. We also
promoted new products, such as CEH, D400 and GPN
during the year. The average selling price decreased from
RMB19,114/tonne to RMB17,562/tonne as we lowered
the price of differentiated products in order to secure more
market share. Since a significant portion of cost of sales
represented raw materials costs for PET/Nylon chips and
PQY, the general decrease in raw materials price benefit our
production. We maintained a stable gross profit margin of
23.6% as compared to 22.3% in 2013 in the differentiated
polyester filament yarn.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Sales volume in regular polyester filament yarn decreased
22.8% from 6,141 tonnes to 4,738 tonnes. Consistent with
our strategy to focus on differentiated products, we sold less
regular products during the year 2014. We produced and
sold regular products mainly for the purpose of utilizing our
production facilities to keep the plant and machineries at the
best working status and to share manufacturing fixed costs
such as depreciation of plant and equipment. We maintained
a relatively high gross profit margin of 13.4% as compared
10 4.3% in 2013 in the regular polyester filament yarn mainly
because we ceased production and sales of certain types
of regular polyester filament yarn which had low gross profit
margin.

Dyeing and processing business

Financial Review
Bt ¥ B B
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22.8%Z 4,738 M o B2 3 2 E 1A = 5
ftEGHRE -3 RMAR_ZT—0F
FREENERERRL BMHEER
HERHERNEIZENRZARKMAN
EEERNE AEREREEBRERFET
VERRBE » 30 5 48 AE B2 & E A (BN 55
REETE) RPN ER KGR REAES
13. 4% B EME - M_ZT—=F8|A
43% FEREARKRMEILEEREE
ETEEEMNRREENERKGRSG-

3) FERMIER

Year ended 31 December

HE+-HA=1+—-RLEE

2014 2013
—E-NEF % of sales —E-=F % of sales
RMB’000 HHERE RMB’000 HIHER
Revenue W& ARET T WESL AREFIT RA DL
Processing activity INTEE 100,420 68.6% 89,006 69.4%
Direct sales BHEHE 46,059 31.4% 39,221 30.6%
146,479 100.0% 128,227 100.0%

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=+-HLEE

2014 2013

—E-NF —T-=F
RMB’000 GP Margin RMB’000 GP Margin
Gross Profit EF ARET R ER= AREFIT EFE
Processing activity INTEE 41,452 41.3% 35,129 39.5%
Direct sales HZHEE 8,087 17.6% 9,127 23.3%
49,539 33.8% 44,256 34.5%

Revenue and gross profit of dyeing and processing business in
2014 were RMB146.5 million and RMB49.5 million respectively,
representing an increase of 14.2% and 11.9%, respectively, mainly
comprise of the following:

F2ERNIEBER_Z—NENKRIRE
Mo B A ANRE146,500,0007T 2 A R
49,500,0007C * 73 A3 HI14.2% 211.9% =&
BEATEE:
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i) Processing volume in dyeing and processing activity
decreased slightly from 37,102,000 meters to 36,825,000
meters due to the decrease in processing orders during
2014. The average processing income increased from
RMB2.4/meter in 2013 to RMB2.7/meter in 2014. We
achieved a gross profit margin of 41.3% as compared to
39.5% in 2013 in the processing activity because of the
economy of scale in operation of the plant and decrease in
costs of production as part of the energy savings and water
recycle initiatives.

i) Sales volume in direct sale increased 13.7% from 3,639,000
meters to 4,138,000 meters as we have more new
customers in 2014. The average selling price for direct sale
remained stable at RMB11.1/meter in 2014 as compared to
RMB10.8/meter in 2013. We achieved a gross profit margin
of 17.6% as compared to 23.3% in 2013 for direct sales
mainly due to the increase in unit cost of fabric.

Other gains, net

Other net gains decreased by RMB4.6 million from RMB7.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB2.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, primarily due to (1) an increase in foreign
exchange losses of approximately RMB1.9 million due to the fluctuations
of the exchange rates of USD against RMB, and hence we recorded
net exchange loss on our accounts receivables and payables not
denominated in RMB mainly in our trading activities; (2) a decrease in
subsidy income received from local tax bureau and Bureau of Finance of
RMB1.7 million; and (3) a decrease in reimbursement for transportation
expenses of RMB1.0 million as we did not trade any cotton from Xinjiang
in 2014.
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Selling expenses

Financial Review
Bt ¥ B B

HER

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEE

2014 2013

—2-mE —T=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREFIT

Selling expenses total HEMZBE 19,593 16,075

Selling expenses increased by RMB3.5 million, or 21.9% from RMB16.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB19.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, primarily attribute to the increased
staff costs in relation to marketing of RMB2.7 million, and increase in
transportation and storage cost by RMB1.0 million, which was mainly
due to the fact that we conducted less intermediary trade during 2014
in which we purchased goods from overseas and then sold to our
overseas customers, and on average we incurred more transportation
and storage costs by conducting importing or trading within the PRC
than intermediary trading.

Administrative expenses
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-AZ=+—BLFE

2014 2013

—E—MF —E—=%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARET T

Administrative expenses total 1T 4858 51,978 42,360

Administrative expenses increased by RMB9.6 million, or 22.7% from
RMB42.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB52.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 primarily due to, (i) the
increase in staff costs of RMB14.8 million to reward employees as a
result of the improvement in profitability of the Group for 2014, and (i) the
increase in professional service expenses of RMB1.8 million in the first
year after listing; offset by the decrease in listing expenses by RMB10.3
million in 2013 due to the successful listing of the Company on 27
November 2013.
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Finance costs, net

Net finance costs decreased by RMB9.4 million, or 74.0% from RMB12.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB3.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014, primarily due to the decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings by RMB15.4 million, mainly as a result of
the decrease in bank borrowings of RMB219.6 million from 31 December
2013 to 31 December 2014 according to our strategy to repay bank
borrowings with excess cash balances during the year 2014, offset
by a decrease in interest income from cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash deposits of RMB4.4 million mainly as a result of decrease
in the aggregate balance by RMB143.3 million from 31 December 2013
to 31 December 2014.

Profit before income tax

Profit before income tax increased from RMB65.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to RMB69.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 by RMB4.8 million or 7.3%, which was mainly due to (1)
increase in gross profit by RMB13.1 million; (2) decrease in net finance
costs by RMB9.4 million; offset by (3) increase in administrative expenses
of RMB9.6 million; (4) decrease in other net gains of RMB4.6 million; and
(5) increase in selling expenses of RMB3.5 million.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expense decreased by 22.5% from 2013 to 2014, which
was in an opposite direction to the increase of profit before income tax
of 7.3% as the corporate income tax rate of Yongsheng Chemical Fiber
reduced from 25% for the year ended 31 December 2013 to 15% for the
year ended 31 December 2014 as it obtained the certificate of qualifying
as “advanced technology company” in 2014.

Total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing, our total comprehensive income increased
by RMB9.2 million, or 19.2% from RMB47.5 million for year ended 31
December 2013 to RMB56.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. Our net profit margin before interest and tax and net profit margin
increased from 4.4% and 2.7% respectively for the year ended 31
December 2013 to 5.3% and 4.1% respectively for the year ended 31
December 2014, mainly as a result of our increased gross profit margin
from 7.3% to 10.3% due to the improvement of gross profit margin of
production activities.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2014 increased by
RMB3.2 million, or 2.5% as compared to 31 December 2013, mainly
attributable to additions of RMB15.9 million, mainly for construction-in-
progress and plant and machinery for production offset by depreciation of
RMB12.3 million.

Inventories

Financial Review
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+t—-HLEE

2014 2013
—E-MmF —F—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMF T

Trading inventories BH5HFHE 50,535 84,268
Finished goods BUAK S 22,230 20,093
Raw materials R H 15,509 11,752
Work in progress TR 2,178 3,044
90,452 119,157
Less: provision B (2,623) (5,995)
87,829 113,162

Inventory turnover days (Note) GFERASBE (ML) 27 daysH 27 daysH

Note: Inventory turnover days equals to the average of beginning and ending
inventory balances of the year divided by revenue of the year and
multiplied by the total number of days for the respective year.

Inventories as at 31 December 2014 decreased by RMB25.3 million, or
22.4% as compared to 31 December 2013, mainly due to decrease in
trading inventories by RMB33.7 million as a result of decrease in trading
revenue by RMB410.2 million for 2014 as compared to 2013.

Inventory turnover days remained stable at 27 days in 2013 and 2014.
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Trade and bills receivables ESEUREREKRERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-AZ=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—ET-mE —F—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFT

Trade receivables B 5 MR 95,757 94,006
Bills receivable W EIE 38,165 37,207
133,922 131,213
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (4,941) (5,108)
Trade and bills receivables — net B S RWGRE M EREE - F5 128,981 126,105

Debtors’ turnover days (Note) FEN RSB B & (MaE) 24 daysH 32 daysH

Note: Debtors’ turnover days equals to the average of the beginning and Bt FEUWEREFAEBEMRENFIIRFRE S EIK
ending trade receivable balances of the year divided by revenue and THESRO TR AN ZBRASFHREE -
multiplied by the total number of days for the respective year.

Trade and bills receivable as at 31 December 2014 increased by RMB2.9 RZE—NFE+-_A=+—HHE SR RBENE

million, or 2.28% as compared to 31 December 2013, mainly attributable KWERR-_T—=FF+_A=+—HBEMNARE

to the increase in trade related receivable of Yongsheng (HK) International 2,900,0007T5%2.28% * = Z B KE () BEEREE

Co., Limited closed to the balance sheet date. FRAFIHE S WA R BRI & H BB R
EE

Debtors’ turnover days decreased from 32 days in 2013 to 24 days in BREFRAEISA T =—FNRAGEEC
2014, mainly due to the decreased in revenue for the year ended 31 T-NFEMNU4E FTEHREE-_T—WF+-A
December 2014 by approximately 22.0%. =T —HIEFERMER D H22.0%F7 B -
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Trade payables

Financial Review
Bt ¥ B B

85 BNRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BLEE

2014 2013
= ks —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Trade payables Z S ENFRIE 105,535 116,829
Creditors’ turnover days (Note) FERBRFEE A& (H57) 35 daysH 43 daysH

Note: Creditors’ turnover days equal to the average of the beginning and
ending trade payable balances of the year divided by cost of sales and
multiplied by the actual number of days in respective year. The above
calculations include trade related payables due to related parties.

Trade payable as at 31 December 2014 decreased by RMB11.3 million,
or 9.7% as compared to 31 December 2013, mainly attributable to
the decline in total revenue by RMB388.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 as compared to the year ended 31 December 2013 as
a result of decrease in trading revenue.

Creditors’ turnover days decreased from 43 days in 2013 to 35 days in
2014, mainly due to decrease in trading revenue during the year resulted
in the decrease in trade payable by 9.7%, offset by decline in total cost of
sales for the year ended 31 December 2013 by approximately 24.5%.

Advances from customers

Advances from customers remained stable at RMB7.1 million as at 31
December 2014 as compared to RMB8.1 million as at 31 December
2013.
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Cash flow

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated cash flow
statements for the year:

RERE

TREIFAGHECRERME

2014 2013

—B-QmE —F-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBF T

Net cash generated from /(used in) operating activities &2 EEFTS,/ (FrR )R L FE 101,497 (6,664)

Net cash generated from investing activities REZHMERLFE 90,873 232,452

Net cash used in financing activities RETHMAREFE (229,697) (135,845)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERBEEEY (HL),/

cash equivalents 2 mFE (37,327) 89,943

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FOHRLRREEEY 166,559 75,700
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Re kA SEMIMNEEREE

on cash and cash equivalents -2 (537) 916

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRESRRESSEY 128,695 166,559

Cash flow from operating activities

Our net cash generated from operating activities amounted to RMB101.5
million, which was primarily attributable to (1) profit before taxation
of RMB69.9 million; and (2) decrease in inventories primarily due to
the tightened inventory control in the textile-related products trading
business.

Cash flow from investing activities

We generated cash from investing activities of RMB90.9 million in 2014,
which was mainly due to the decrease in restricted bank deposits of
RMB105.5 million, due to the decrease in purchases incurred from letter
of credit from 2013 to 2014.

Cash flow from financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities in 2014 amounted to RMB229.7
million, which mainly consisted of (1) net repayment of bank borrowings
of RMB220.1 million and interest paid of RMB6.0 million, according to our
strategy to repay bank borrowings with excess cash balances; and (2)
dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of RMB3.0 million.
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Capital Structure

The Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2014 is
HK$4,000,000 divided into 400,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy, and its debt to equity
ratio (calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing borrowings by
total equity) as at 31 December 2014 was approximately 0.5% (31
December 2013: approximately 69.9%). The current ratio (calculated
as current assets divided by current liabilities) as at 31 December 2014
was approximately 2.22 times (31 December 2013: approximately 1.48
times).

Liquidity, financial resources, and use of the IPO
proceeds

As at 31 December 2014, the total amount of the borrowings by the
Group was RMB2.0 million (31 December 2013: RMB221.6 million). The
Group settled borrowings in the amount of approximately RMB219.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Group’s cash and
bank balances, including restricted cash, amounted to RMB141.6
million (31 December 2013: RMB284.9 million). The Group has received
net proceeds of HK$81.5 million (approximately RMB63.7 million) from
issuance of ordinary shares under the share offer on 27 November
2013. The Group has utilised approximately RMB28.2 million of the net
proceeds as at 31 December 2014 and intends to apply the remaining
net proceeds in the manner consistent with that disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 November 2013 in respect of
the share offer.

Pledge of Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2014, bank borrowings of RMB2.0 million were
pledged by buildings with net book value of RMB35.1 million and land
use rights with net book value of RMB12.3 million.

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at each balance sheet dates, but not
yet incurred as follows:

Financial Review
Bt ¥ B B
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Operating lease commitments

The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under
non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

RERWAE

A S8 AR T A A A R A0S T 9 R R
AENRAENT

2014 2013

—E-mE —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AR T T

Not later than 1 year TER—F 848 1,066
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years BR—FRTMERATF 504 995
1,352 2,061

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has no material contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisition and Disposals

Save as disclosed in note 18(a) paragraph(b) to the financial statements,
the Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
or associates during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedge

Most transactions of the Group are settled in Renminbi (‘RMB”) since
the operations of the Group are mainly carried out in the PRC, and the
major subsidiaries of the Group are operating in an RMB environment
and the functional currency of the major subsidiaries is RMB. The
reporting currency of the Group is RMB. The Group carried on trading
of textile products from overseas and most of the transactions were
settled in United States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are
predominantly in RMB. The Company will pay dividends in Hong Kong
Dollars if dividends are declared. The Directors are of the view that RMB
is relatively stable against the other currencies and the Group will closely
monitor the fluctuations in exchange rates, and that hedging by means
of derivative instruments is therefore not necessary. RMB is currently not
a freely convertible currency. A portion of the Group’s RMB revenue or
profit may be converted into other currencies to meet foreign currency
obligations of the Group such as the payment of dividends, if declared.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2014 increased by
RMB3.2 million, or 2.5% as compared to 31 December 2013, mainly
attributable to additions of RMB15.9 million, mainly for construction-in-
progress and plant and machinery for production offset by depreciation of
RMB12.3 million.

Inventories

Financial Review
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+t—-HLEE

2014 2013
—E-MmF —F—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARMEF T

Trading inventories BH5HFHE 50,535 84,268
Finished goods 2K G 22,230 20,093
Raw materials R H 15,509 11,752
Work in progress TR 2,178 3,044
90,452 119,157
Less: provision B (2,623) (5,995)
87,829 113,162

Inventory turnover days (Note) GFERASBE (ML) 27 daysH 27 daysH

Note: Inventory turnover days equals to the average of beginning and ending
inventory balances of the year divided by revenue of the year and
multiplied by the total number of days for the respective year.

Inventories as at 31 December 2014 decreased by RMB25.3 million, or
22.4% as compared to 31 December 2013, mainly due to decrease in
trading inventories by RMB33.7 million as a result of decrease in trading
revenue by RMB410.2 million for 2014 as compared to 2013.

Inventory turnover days remained stable at 27 days in 2013 and 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Cheng

aged 52, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board of the
Company (the “Chairman”). Mr. Li is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee under the Board and the authorised representative of the
Company. Mr. Li has more than 20 years of experience in textile and
trading industry, and is mainly responsible for overall business strategy
and management of the Group. From August 1985 to May 1993, Mr. Li
had been engaged in trading of textile products as a sole proprietorship.
He worked as the general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading
Company from March 1993 to November 1997, and from November
1997 to June 1999, he assumed the role of general manager of Xiaoshan
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Company Limited (currently known as
Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Limited, “Yongsheng Group”). He served
as the general manager of Hangzhou Yongsheng Weaving Limited
(“Yongsheng Weaving”) from June 1999 to April 20083. Since 2003, Mr. Li
has been appointed as a chairman of the board of directors of Yongsheng
Group. Mr. Li has been a senior economist since October 2013.

Mr. Li completed his professional study major in dyeing and processing
engineering in Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textile (now known as Zhejiang
Sci-Tech University) in July 1985, and in March 2004, he completed a
course on corporate director advanced business administration which
was held by Ningbo Jianfeng Management Technology Research
Centre. Between 2006 and 2012, Mr. Lee had also completed various
courses including the Senior Training Course on the Philosophy of New
Technology and Enterprise Growth—Growth enterprise and the Senior
Training Course on Financial Investment in Real Operations respectively
offered by the school of humanities and the school of media of Zhejiang
University, the Senior Training course for Business Administration
Executives offered by Zhejiang Gongshang University, the training course
for senior enterprise operators and managers in Hangzhou City on “356
Engineering Programme” in relation to investment, financing and capital
operation training offered by Fudan University. Mr. Li was appointed as
the deputy chairman of The Professional Committee of Zhejiang Province
Privately-operated Economic Research Centre in December 2002.

Mr. Li has been elected as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since May 2005. He was also elected as the chairman of
the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Wenzhou Chamber of Commerce
in July 2010, the vice-chairman of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District
General Chamber of Commerce in December 2012 and the standing
council member of the China Chemical Fiber Association in April 2012.
In October 2008, Mr. Li was named the “Staff Caring Outstanding
Entrepreneur” of Hangzhou City jointly awarded by the Federation of
Trade Union of Hangzhou City and the Industry and Commerce Joint
Committee of Hangzhou City. In February 2013, Mr. Li was awarded the
“Outstanding Socialist Builder” for the years 2010—2012 by the Office
of China Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District and The People’s Government
Office of Hangzhou City Xianshan District.
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Mr. Zhao Jidong

aged 50, an executive Director and chief executive officer (the “Chief
Executive Officer”) of the Company. Mr. Zhao is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee under the Board. Mr. Zhao has more than
25 years of experience in textile industry, and is mainly responsible for
general management and overall operations of the Group. Mr. Zhao
joined Yongsheng Group as the position of chief executive officer since
June 2010. Mr. Zhao was previously also a director of Yongsheng
Group. From July 1985 to October 2006, Mr. Zhao had worked in
Yangzhou Cloth Factory and he served previously as the factory director.
He had also served as the deputy director and director of Yangzhou
Textile Research Institute from February 1990 to October 2006. From
September 2006 to July 2011, Mr. Zhao had been the director of
Shanghai Huayuan Company Limited, a company which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600094). From November 2006
to July 2011, Mr. Zhao had been the deputy general manager and chief
engineer of Shanghai Huayuan Company Limited.

Mr. Zhao obtained his bachelor degree major in textile engineering from
Wuxi Light Industry Institute (currently known as Jiangnan University) in
July 1985. Mr. Zhao has also completed the Senior Training Course for
Young Entrepreneur in Financial Control and Capital Operation offered
by Tsinghua University in December 2011. Mr. Zhao was elected as
a council member of Yangzhou City Textile Construction Association
in June 1991. He joined the Jiangsu Textile Engineering Association
as a product professional committee member in January 2004, and
had been granted the government special allowance certificate by the
State Council of the PRC in 2000. He has completed and passed the
Training Course for Senior Management of Listed Companies offered by
China Securities Regulatory Commission Shanghai Regulatory Bureau
respectively in 2007 and 2008. He was also accredited as a senior
engineer on textile engineering by the Job Title Reform Office of Jiangsu
Province Textile Industry Bureau and professor level senior engineer by
Jiangsu Department of Personnel respectively in 1995 and 2000. Mr.
Zhao was engaged by the Graduate School of Donghua University as an
off-campus mentor in September 2012.

Mr. Zhao also obtained a number of awards, including the “3rd prize
of Yangzhou Science and Technology Advancement Awards” and
the “1st prize of Yangzhou Science and Technology Advancement
Awards” awarded by Yangzhou Science and Technology Advancement
Awards Judging Committee, the “National Textile Labour Working Role
Model” awarded by China Textile Industrial Bureau, the “Yangzhou
City Technology Contributor” awarded by Yangzhou City, the “Central
Enterprise Labour Working Role Model” awarded jointly by the National
Ministry of Personnel and State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council, and the “2nd Prize of
Sang Ma Textile Technology” by the Sang Ma Trust Fund. Mr. Zhao was
awarded the “3rd prize of Jiangsu Province Science and Technology
Advancement Awards” on his projects of “High Stimulation Twisted
Peach Skin flannel” and “The Ultrafine Composite Fabric Thread”,
and was awarded the “2nd prize of Jiangsu Province Science and
Technology Advancement Awards” on his project of “The Sea-island
Ultrafine Composite Synthetic Chamois Leathers” by Jiangsu Province
Science and Technology Advancement Awards Judging Committee. He
has been selected as one of the “Candidates of the First Batch National
Engineering Talents of the National New Century Project” by the Ministry
of Personnel of the PRC in April 2004 and passed its advanced training in
July 2005.
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Mr. Li Conghua

aged 40, an executive Director of the Company and general manager
of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng Foreign Trading Company Limited
(“Hangzhou Yongsheng Trading”). Mr. Li has more than 15 years
of experience in the textile industry, and is mainly responsible for
management and supervision of ordinary operation of the Group’s
trading business. He worked as a chemical fiber materials salesperson
in the chemical fiber department in Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading
Company Limited from June 1997 to December 2000, and worked as a
department manager in chemical fiber department of Yongsheng Group
from January 2000 to to December 2004. Since March 2005, he has
been the general manager of Hangzhou Yongsheng Trading.

Mr. Li has also completed the Senior Training Course for Chief Executive
Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by Zhejiang University in January
2008. Mr. Li is the nephew of Mr. Li Cheng.

Mr. Ma Qinghai

aged 40, an executive Director of the Company and general manager
of Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Dyeing and Finishing Company Limited
(“Yongsheng Dyeing”) manufacturing division. Mr. Ma has more than 15
years of experience in the textile industry, and is mainly responsible for
management and supervision of ordinary operation of the Group’s dyeing
business. Mr. Ma was the technical supervisor and workshop officer of
Zhejiang Hongli Group Limited Printing and Dyeing Branch Company
from August 1994 to February 2001. Mr. Ma held the position of internal
trading manager of Yongsheng Group from January 2002 to July 2005
and was previously a director of Yongsheng Group. Mr. Ma served as
the vice factory director, factory director and deputy general manager of
Yongsheng Dyeing from August 2005 to February 2008, and has held the
general manager position of Yongsheng Dyeing since February 2008.

In July 1994, Mr. Ma completed his professional study major in dyeing
and processing in Zhejiang Province Common Intermediate Professional
School. He completed the Senior Training Course for Chief Executive
Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by the school of humanity of Zhejiang
University in April 2007. Mr. Ma was awarded the “Progressive Individual
of Xiaoshan Dongpian Printing, Dyeing and Chemical Industry Provincial
Level Environmental Protection Key Regulatory Area Remediation Work”
by the People’s Government of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou City in
2007. Mr. Ma obtained the award of “Outstanding Contract Manager
of Xiaoshan District” jointly offered by the Hangzhou Administration for
Industry and Commerce Xiaoshan Branch and Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District Enterprise Contract Management Association in 2010.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

aged 53, an independent non-executive Director of the Company. She
is also the chairlady of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee under the Board. Ms. Wong has over twenty years of
experience in accounting and auditing, and mainly provides her
independent judgment on strategy, performance, resources, code
of conduct and other aspects of the Company. She had worked for
more than seven years in major international accounting firms and local
accounting firms before she set up her own accounting firm in Hong
Kong in 1993.

Ms. Wong is an independent non-executive director and the chairperson
of the audit committees of AVIC International Holdings Limited (Main
Board stock code: 161), China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings
Limited (Main Board stock code: 527), Overseas Chinese Town (Asia)
Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code: 3366) and Glory Flame
Holdings Limited (Growth Enterprise Market (‘GEM”) stock code: 8059).
Ms. Wong is a non-executive director of Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Limited (Main Board stock code: 6893). Ms. Wong is also
an executive director and chief executive officer of JC Group Holdings
Limited (GEM stock code: 8326).

Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from University of Hong
Kong in November 19883 and a postgraduate diploma in accounting and
finance from the London School of Economics and Political Science,
University of London, in the United Kingdom in July 1985. She has been
registered as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since June
1991. Ms. Wong has become a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (‘FCCA”) and a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘FCPA”) since May 1995
and February 2001 respectively. Ms. Wong has been appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 7 November
2013.

Mr. Shiping James Wang

aged 54, an independent non-executive Director of the Company. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
under the Board. Mr. Wang mainly provides his independent judgment
on strategy, performance, resources, code of conduct and other aspects
of the Company. Mr. Wang was the Foreign General Legal Counsel of
Zhongxin Law Firm Shanghai Branch from July 2009 to March 2013 and
has been the Foreign General Legal Counsel of Shanghai Hanyuan Law
Firm since June 2013.

Mr. Wang obtained a master degree of science in biochemical
engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in May 1988.
He completed his Juris Doctoris in Seton Hall Law School in June 1994.
Mr. Wang was admitted as an attorney at law in the Supreme Court of
New Jersey and the US District Court for the District of New Jersey in
December 1994. Mr. Wang has been appointed as the independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 7 November 2013.
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Dr. Wang Huaping

aged 49, an independent non-executive Director of the Company. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee under the Board. Dr. Wang mainly
provides his independent judgment on strategy, performance, resources,
code of conduct and other aspects of the Company.

Dr. Wang has been serving as a professor and a doctoral advisor in the
Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering of Donghua University since
October 2002, and has been the associate dean of the Research Institute
of Donghua University since 2011. Dr. Wang is renowned for his research
in nanomaterials for fiber forming and polymer-based nanocomposite
fibers, spinning forming theory and processing technology, systems
of new clean production: ionic liquid/fiber-forming polymer and has
published a number of papers on those topics.

Dr. Wang has been the independent director of Jiangsu Jiangnan
High Polymer Fiber Co. Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600527) since May 2013.

Dr. Wang obtained a doctorate degree from the Faculty of Materials
Science and Engineering of Donghua University in March 2002. From
January 1989 to March 1992, Dr. Wang was employed by the China
Textile University (currently known as Donghua University) as a trainee
researcher and then worked at Donghua University as an officer of
the Technology Laboratory of Chemical Fiber Engineering Research
Centre. Dr. Wang served as an assistant researcher, a deputy officer, an
officer, and an associate researcher in the Faculty of Materials Science
and Engineering from March 1992 to September 2002. Dr. Wang was
appointed as the associate dean of the Faculty of Materials Science and
Engineering from November 2004 to April 2010. Since September 2008,
Dr. Wang has been the director of the Institute for Engineering Research
Center of Advanced Glass Manufacturing Technology.

Dr. Wang is the deputy director of the Gaoxin Fibers Professional
Committee of China Chemical Fibers Association, deputy director of
Fibers Professional Committee of China Textile Engineering Society,
deputy director of Fibers Professional Committee of Shanghai Textile
Engineering Society, deputy director of Industrial Standard Committee
of China Chemical Fibers Association, committee member of Expertise
Committee of China Nonwovens & Industrial Textiles Association, the
expert of the Textile Industry Division of the National Development and
Reform Commission, committee member of Technical Committee of the
Engineering Research Centre of the Textile Equipment of the Ministry
of Education and the deputy director of the Editorial Committee of
China Synthetic Fiber Industry. Dr. Wang has been appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 19 August
2014.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Zhao Ganghua

aged 51, the general manager of Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Chemical
Fiber Company Limited (“Yongsheng Chemical Fiber”). Mr. Zhao has
over 15 years of experience in management, and is mainly responsible
for management and supervision of day-to-day operation of fiber
manufacturing business of Yongsheng Chemical Fiber. Mr. Zhao was the
vice president of Yongsheng Group from January 2007 to December
2011, and he joined Yongsheng Chemical Fiber as a general manager
as well as the chairman of the Labour Union of Yongsheng Group
in February 2008. Mr. Zhao worked in Singapore Dongyuan China
Investment Company Limited as the chairman assistant from February
1995 to January 1999. He worked in Shenzhen Franchise Association
as a vice secretary-general from November 2001 to November 2002,
and he was the management advisory counsellor of Hangzhou Shidai
Guanghua Limited from May 2003 to December 2005.

Mr. Zhao completed the enterprise management course held by Vigor
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. in March 2001 and obtained his
master of business administration from the University of Ballarat in
Australia in May 2003. He was invited by Huzhou University as guest
lecturer in June 2005. He was named as the “Asia Top Ten Trainer” by the
International Profession Training Business Society in 2006. Mr. Zhao has
been a senior economist since December 2009.

Mr. Shi Hongxing

aged 46, the general manager of Nantong Yongsheng Fiber Advanced
Materials Company Limited (“Nantong Yongsheng”), and is mainly
responsible for management and supervision of day-to-day operation of
fiber manufacturing business of Nantong Yongsheng. Mr. Shi joined the
Group in June 2010. Mr. Shi had been the general manager assistant and
the head of production department of Nantong Huatong Chemical Fiber
Limited from July 1993 to June 2008. He had been the general manager
assistant in Shenghong Group Jiangsu Zhonglu Technology Company
Limited from August 2008 to May 2010.

Mr. Shi obtained his bachelor degree majoring in chemical fiber from the
Suzhou Silk Technical Institute in July 1993. Mr. Shi has been accredited
as a senior engineer since December 2008.

Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Leung Ho Yan, Julian

aged 35, the financial controller, company secretary and authorised
representative of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 13 years of experience in
audit and accounting industry, and is mainly responsible for compliance,
financial reporting and planning of the Group. Mr. Leung joined
Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Limited in February 2012. He worked
in KPMG from August 2001 to January 2012 with his secondment to
KPMG Huazhen Beijing Office from January 2008 to September 2009.

Mr. Leung obtained the Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001 and further obtained
the master of corporate governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in October 2014. Mr. Leung has been a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“FCCA”), a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“FCPA”), an associate of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (“ACIS”) and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries (‘“ACS”).

Mr. Li Min

aged 47, the head of internal audit department of the Group. Mr. Li
has over 20 years of accounting experience, and is mainly responsible
for internal control and risk management of the Group. Mr. Li joined
Yongsheng Group in March 2000 as a financial manager and then a
director. Mr. Li worked as an assistant accountant in various factories
including Xiaoshan Agricultural Machinery Factory (currently known as
Hangzhou Safe Company Limited), Xiaoshan Building Materials Factory
and Saintyear Holding Co., Ltd..

Mr. Li completed his higher education in industrial statistic in Hangzhou
Business School in June 1992. Mr. Li was awarded as the “2003
Outstanding Statistics Financial Worker of Hangzhou Township
Enterprises” by the Hangzhou Economic Commission in 2004 and
has been conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC as a senior
accountant since November 2009.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Ms. Zhang Yingli

aged 41, the head of finance department of the Group, and is mainly
responsible for financial reporting and treasury management for
subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Zhang joined Yongsheng Group in October
20083. She was the financial accountant of Zhejiang Asia Pacific Electrical
and Mechanical Group Limited from July 1995 to November 2001.

Ms. Zhang completed her higher education in accounting in the Central
China Agricultural University in July 1995. Ms. Zhang has obtained the
certificate of passing the professional stage examinations of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“CICPA”). Ms. Zhang has been
conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC as an intermediate
accountant since May 2002.

Mr. Xu Bing

aged 34, the head of human resources and administration department
of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 10 years in human resources and
administration management, and is mainly responsible for human
resources management and administration of the Group. Mr. Xu joined
Yongsheng Weaving in May 2003 as the office manager and then the
office manager of Yongsheng Dyeing, and is mainly responsible for
human resources, administration and purchasing management. He
rotated to Yongsheng Group as the head of human resources and
administration department in December 2008. Mr. Xu worked as the
manager of the human resources department of Zhejiang Chenhui
Lighting Company Limited from July 2002 to May 2008.

Mr. Xu graduated in Hubei Xiangfan Institute (currently known as Hubei
University of Arts and Science) majoring in business administration in
June 2002.
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Mr. Xu Hua

aged 49, the supervisor of product information department of the Group.
Mr. Xu has over 20 years of experience of fabric product development,
and is mainly responsible for product research and development and
market research. Mr. Xu joined Yongsheng Group in March 2011. Mr. Xu
had been the head of product development department of Yangzhou
Cloth Factory from December 1993 to June 1997 and had been the head
of product development department and general engineer of Yangzhou
Huayuan Company Limited from November 2004 to February 2011.

Mr. Xu graduated from Nantong Textile Institute in July 1987 majoring
in textile engineering. He was awarded the 3rd prize, the 3rd prize
and the 2nd prize of “Jiangsu Province Science and Technology
Advancement Awards” by Jiangsu Province Science and Technology
Advancement Judging Committee on his projects of “High Stimulation
Twisted Peach Skin Flannel”, “The Ultrafine Composite Fabric Thread”
and “The Sea-island Ultrafine Composit Synthetic Chamoic Leather” in
September 1996, October 1999 and December 2001 respectively. Mr.
Xu was appraised by the People’s Government of Jiangsu Province in
September 1997 for the achievement made from his work in relation to
technological transformation in production between 1991 and 1996. He
was named as the “Young Professional with outstanding contribution”
by the People’s Government of Yangzhou and awarded the “Five-One
Labour Medal by Yangzhou Federation of Trade Unions” in 2006. Mr. Xu
was named as the head of young professionals in respect of scientific
technology of “333 Training Programme for Talented Individuals” by
Leading Group for Talented Individuals in Jiangsu Province between 2007
and 2010. Mr. Xu was accredited as a senior engineer in 2002.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company was committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold transparency, accountability and independence in all aspects
of business and endeavours to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group’s corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) — Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
During the Review Period, the Board considered that the Company had
complied with the Code.

The Board will periodically review the Company’s current corporate
practices and procedures and will maintain and further enhance the
standard of corporate governance practices of the Company, in order to
ensure it is in line with international and local best practices and optimise
the interests of the shareholders, investors, employees, business partners
and the community as a whole.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code and such code of conduct during the Review Period.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the Group’s business. The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors so
that independent judgement can be effectively exercised.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. During the Review Period, the
Directors were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jidong (CEO)
Mr. Li Conghhua

Mr. Ma Qinghai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Shiping James Wang

Dr. Wang Huaping (appointed on 19 August 2014)
Mr. Duan Xiaoping (resigned on 19 August 2014)

The brief biographic details of and relationships between the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 34 to 38. Save as disclosed under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management”, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships between
Board members and in particular, between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

During the Review Period, the Board maintained a high level of
independence, with more than one-third of the Board comprised of
independent non-executive Directors, who had exercised independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications whenever the names of the
Directors are disclosed.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors satisfied the
Listing Rules requirement of independence.

Board Meetings and General Meetings

The Board meeting is held regularly. In addition to regular meetings, it
meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances. During the
Review Period, five Board meetings were held. The Directors attended
the meetings in person or by telephone in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

A record of the Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and the
general meeting held during the Review Period is set out as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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ARREWEZBILIFRITESRE LT RAFE3.13
RFAEBE BRI RENFEEB L EERE A
RARRERBUFNTESTHTA LWRAAMR
BRI IE

EEgEERRRAE

Exgxamed ARrBRIEIN TFRRHRE
ATERER - ROEHRN CRTARESZSS
#oRBAKERMR ETHRANBREF2ME

2
A °©

BELFEREEENETHEE SRR RRIAR
MBI T

(Attendance/
Number of Board
meetings held)

(Attendance/
Number of general
meetings held)

(HERE (HERE
FETESS FBTRRARE
BERRE) RE)
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Cheng T s 5/5 1/
Mr. Zhao Jidong FHAER A 5/5 1/1
Mr. Li Conghhua FIREL L 5/5 11
Mr. Ma Qinghai BEBLE 5/5 11

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BFERZL 5/5 1/1
Mr. Shiping James Wang FFEE 5/5 0/1
(Note 3)
(H1723)
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 2/2 N/A i A
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(Krat1) (Ki7t1)
Mr. Duan Xiaoping /N A A 2/3 0/1
(Note 2) (Note 4) (Note 5)
(KtzE2)(Btat4) (#17E5)

Note 1: Dr. Wang Huaping was appointed as an independent non-executive

Director of the Company on 19 August 2014. Dr. Wang attended two

out of two Board meetings held during his tenure in the Review Period
and there was no general meeting held during the said period.
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Note 2: Mr. Duan Xiaoping retired from office as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 19 August 2014. Mr. Duan
attended two out of three Board meetings held during his tenure in
the Review Period.

Note 3: Mr. Shiping James Wang was unable to attend the general meeting
held in 2014 due to his unavoidable business arrangements.

Note 4.: Mr. Duan Xiaoping was not able to attend one Board meeting held in
2014 due to his unavoidable business arrangements.

Note 5: Mr. Duan Xiaoping was not able to attend the general meeting held in
2014 due to his unavoidable business arrangements.

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of our Company was held on 5
June 2014. Our next AGM will be held on 20 May 2015. Our Directors,
financial controller and company secretary and other senior executives
of the Company will attend the AGM together with our external auditor
to answer any questions from shareholders. All Directors treasure the
opportunity to canvass the views of the shareholders in the AGM held
annually.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and
be collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board focuses
on formulating the Group’s overall strategies, authorising the annual
development plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating
performance; reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system;
supervising and managing management’s performance and determining
the corporate governance policy of the Group. The Board delegates the
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Group
to management. The delegated functions are reviewed by the Board
periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the Group.
The Board gives clear directions to management as to the matters that
must be approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of
the Group.

During the Review Period, the Board has reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied with the
effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 7
November 2013. The Nomination Committee has from time to time
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board. The main consideration in
selecting candidates for directorships is whether their characters,
qualifications and experience are appropriate for the businesses of the
Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract for a term of 3 years which may be terminated by either
party giving to the other party at least 3 months’ prior written notice.
All independent non-executive Directors are subject to rotation and re-
election at AGM of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

On 19 August 2014, Mr. Duan Xiaoping resigned as the independent
non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. On the same
date, Dr. Wang Huaping was appointed as the independent non-
executive Director and member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Details of the
appointment and resignation of Directors are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 August 2014,

Dr. Wang Huaping has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of 3 years which may be terminated by either party giving to
the other party at least 3 months’ prior written notice and is subject to
rotation and re-election at AGM of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM of the Company, at least one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. All such retiring Directors being eligible
will offer themselves for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Zhao Jidong and Mr.
James Shiping Wang will retire from office as Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Dr. Wang Huaping was appointed by the Board as independent non-
executive Director on 19 August 2014. Pursuant to Article 112 of the
Articles of Association, Dr. Wang Huaping will retire from office as Director,
being eligible and will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.
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Insurance of the Directors and Officers

The Company has bought a liability insurance for Directors and officers in
respect of legal action against the Directors and officers has been bought
which is in compliance with code provision A.1.8 of the Code.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials
to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations
and Board’s policies. The Company is committed to arranging and
funding suitable training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the governance
policies of the Group. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed to participating
any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Review Period is set out below:

ESRERABHNRE

AR CETTAIM AR EA 8K FLEtHE
ERBRABNERFARBEERSRAEEE
R -

ABERRGESERE

METESHEEEIRSEER MEERFAR
REXGEEREFERR -ARRARIRERE
ENRESXRERABSRHELEEE WEI -
BEETREFNRENSNER UBRERES
MEER EMRAIRBEE A REEREARANE
BEARKRATHEFE 2RBETTHAFEEE
BRMERN  WAGS2EEMNSERNSEI UER
RERRENOMBERE RESRUNCE BF
REBEHAMEZNEIREHTINT

(Types of continuous
professional development

programmes)

(FESXERRFREER)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Cheng Pk~ 2,3, 4
Mr. Zhao Jidong HERTE 2,34
Mr. Li Conghua ENEs 2,84
Mr. Ma Qinghai BEEEE 2,34
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling H5ERLZT 2,4
Mr. Shiping James Wang THFLEE 2,4
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFIEL 1,2
Notes: Bt 5 -
1 Attend induction program organized by lawyers of the Company 1 HERAR B EMAEGSNABENRE

2 Attend update program organized by lawyers of the Company

3 Attend internal training organized by the company secretary of the
Company

4 Read relevant materials of workshops/internal trainings/updates on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulations
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Li Cheng and the Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. Zhao Jidong. The Chairman is responsible for
providing leadership to, and overseeing, the functioning of the Board and
seeking to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that they receive, in a timely manner, adequate
and reliable information. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
managing the business of the Group and leading the management team
to implement strategies and objectives adopted by the Board. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee which
comprises one executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors. The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include consulting the Chairman of the Board about their remuneration
proposals for other executive Directors, making recommendation to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management and making recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors’
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee also make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written
terms of reference that are posted on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

On 19 August 2014, Mr. Duan Xiaoping resigned as the member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. On the same date, Dr. Wang
Huaping was appointed as the member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

During the Review Period, among others, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and the terms of the
executive Directors’ service contracts, made recommendation to the
Board on the policy for the remuneration of non-executive Directors,
independent non-executive Director and Chief Executive Officer,
assessed performance of non-executive Directors, independent non-
executive Directors and Chief Executive Officer and approved the terms
of independent non-executive Director’s service contracts.
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There are two meetings held during the Review Period and the
attendance by each committee member is set out below:

REESHR | TMASH SUZBEEKENH
FRERAEINMT

(Attendance/

Number of meetings)

Members of Remuneration Committee FMEEERE (HEREEERE)
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairiadly) B5EBRZT (£E) 2/2
Mr. Zhao Jidong ik A 2/2
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL N/A 7 i A
(Note) (H15)

Mr. Duan Xiaoping /NS 2/2

Note: Dr. Wang Huaping was appointed as a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company on 19 August 2014. There was no meeting
held by the Remuneration Committee during his tenure in the Review
Period.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee which comprises
one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors.
The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board member and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is established
with specific terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s
authority and duties and is available on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

On 19 August 2014, Mr. Duan Xiaoping resigned as the member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. On the same date, Dr. Wang
Huaping was appointed as the member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee also endorsed the Board Diversity Policy.

As part of the Board Diversity Policy, the Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against selection criteria. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which
would include but not be limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination
Committee will from time to time review this policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of this policy.
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hERERBME

There are two meetings held during the Review Period and the RERESA RITTMAEH BULZESNENH
attendance by each committee member is set out below: FIERETI AT :
(Attendance/
Number of meetings)
Members of Nomination Committee REZEERE (HEREEERE)
Ms. Li Cheng (Chairman) WL E (FE) 2/2
Mr. Shiping James Wang FitFEAE 2/2
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL N/A A~ A
(Note) (f1:%)
Mr. Duan Xiaoping o/ NS A 2/2

Note: Dr. Wang Huaping was appointed as a member of Nomination
Committee of the Company on 19 August 2014. There was no meeting
held by the Nomination Committee during his tenure in the Review
Period.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently consists of 3 independent non-executive
Directors. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’s financial information, review and supervise the Company’s
financial reporting process and internal control procedures, nominate
and monitor external auditors and provide advice and comments to
the Board. The Audit Committee is established with specific terms
of references which deal clearly with the committee’s authority and
duties and is available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the Review Period, the Audit Committee discussed
and reviewed the interim and final results of the Group and certain other
businesses. The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control was
also discussed at the meetings. The Audit Committee has also reviewed
with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
including a review of the interim report, annual report and the final result of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. The Group’s
final results for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual report,
and confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules. In
the opinion of the Audit Committee, there are no material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. There is no disagreesment
between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

On 19 August 2014, Mr. Duan Xiaoping resigned as the member of the
Audit Committee of the Company. On the dame date, Dr. Wang Huaping
was appointed as the member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
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There are two meetings held during the Review Period and the
attendance by each committee member is set out below:

REESHR |ITTMAEH SUZEEXENH
FREREINMT

(Attendance/

Number of meetings)

Members of Audit Committee ERZE'RE (HEREEERE)
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) BERRLT (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Shiping James Wang F it F A 2/2
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFIEL 1/1
(Note 1) (fi7#1)

Mr. Duan Xiaoping s/ N 11
(Note 2) (H17#2)

Note 1: Dr. Wang Huaping was appointed as a member of Audit Committee
of the Company on 19 August 2014. Dr. Wang attended one out of
one meeting held during his tenure in the Review Period.

Note 2: Mr. Duan Xiaoping retired from office as a member of Audit
Committee of the Company on 19 August 2014. Mr. Duan attended
one out of one mesting held by the Audit Committee during his tenure
in the Review Period.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is committed to manage business risks and to maintain
a proper and effective system of internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, has conducted annual review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s system of internal control covering all controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
processes. The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied with
the Code in respect of internal controls during the Review Period.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Mr. Li Cheng and Ever Thrive
Global Limited are the controlling shareholders of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholders”). To protect the Group from any potential
competition, the Controlling Shareholders have given an irrevocable non-
competition undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour
of the Company on 7 November 2013 pursuant to which each of the
Controlling Shareholders has, among other matters, undertaken with the
Company that each of the Controlling Shareholders and their respective
associates (other than the Group) shall not, engaged in any business
which will or may compete with the business currently and from time to
time engaged by the Group. Details of the Non-competition Undertaking
have been set out in paragraph headed “Relationship with our controlling
shareholders — Non-competition Undertaking” of the Prospectus.
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The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance
with the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking during 2014. The
independent non-executive Directors, having reviewed the annual
declarations and made reasonable enquiry, are satisfied that the
Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms of the Non-
competition Undertaking during the Review Period.

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND
REGULATORY MATTERS AS DISCLOSED IN
PROSPECTUS

As disclosed in the section headed “Business — Non-compliance and
legal proceedings” of the Prospectus, during the three financial years
ended 31 December 2012 and the six months ended 30 June 2013
(“Track Record Period”), the Group has failed to comply with laws and
regulations in the PRC.

As part of remedial action and monitoring process, our Company
has engaged an independent consulting firm (the “Internal Control
Consultant”) as our internal control consultant in November 2012 to
review selected areas of our Group’s internal controls over financial
reporting. During the review, the Internal Control Consultant identified
internal control deficiencies of non-compliance incidents relating to (i)
non-compliant bill arrangements, (i) housing provident fund contributions
and (jii) social insurance contributions and has recommended remedial
measures to enhance our internal control system. Set out below are the
updates of the remedial actions taken in relation to those non-compliance
matters.

Non-compliance bill arrangement

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the annual report of the Company in
20183, we used the proceeds from bank acceptance notes for purposes
other than for payment of purchase from certain suppliers during the
Track Record Period, which did not comply with the terms of the credit
agreements and Article 10 of the PRC Negotiable Instruments Law. As
advised by the Internal Control Consultant, our Group has undertaken the
following remedial measures with effect from March 2013:

° established segregation of duties between application and
approval of issuance of bank acceptance notes;
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° when the bank acceptance note is issued, the finance department
reviews and makes record to ensure each bank acceptance note is
tracked and managed;

. the finance department performs checking on a monthly basis to
identify any discrepancy between the note payables issued and the
actual underlying transactions; and

o the internal control department of our Group performs checking on
the compliance regarding non-compliance bill arrangement on a
monthly basis.

In addition, we have appointed an independent external consultant to
examine and monitor our bill financing activities. Based on the reviews
performed, no non-compliance bill arrangement incident was noted in the
Review Period.

Housing provident fund and social insurance
contribution

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the annual report of the Company
in 2013, we did not make full social insurance and housing provident
fund contributions for all of our respective employees as required under
the relevant national PRC laws and regulations during the Track Record
Period. All underpaid social insurance and housing provident fund
contributions during the Track Record Period has been accrued in the
financial statements. As advised by the Internal Control Consultant, our
Group has undertaken the following remedial measures with effect from
April 2013:

° the finance department reviews the payment details of housing
provident fund and social insurance to ensure that they are timely
provided to all the employees; and

° the internal control department performs checking on the
compliance regarding housing provident fund contributions and
social insurance contributions on a monthly basis.

During the Review Period, the Company has made full social insurance
and housing provident fund contributions for all of our respective
employees as required under the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
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Regulatory requirements of applying building
ownership certificate

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the annual report of the Company
in 2013, we are not able to obtain the building ownership certificate for
one building with gross floor area of approximately 70 square metres in
our Nantong plant (“Defective Building”). The Defective Building had been
vacated and no longer in use. The Defective Building was demolished
during the Review Period.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Group’s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The
remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2014 comprised fees for audit
services of RMB1,350,000 (2013: RMB950,000). During the financial
year ended 31 December 2014, there was no non-audit service provided
by our external auditor.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

All Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The
auditors of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities
in the auditor’s report on the financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014. The statement by the auditors of the
Company about their responsibilities for the financial statements is set
out in the report of the independent auditor’s report contained in this
annual report. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going-concern
basis.
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TERERBME

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Ho Yan Julian (ACIS, ACS, FCCA, FCFA) has been the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since
7 November 2013. Mr. Leung is a full time employee of the Group and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company
Secretary reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters and facilitating communication
between Board members, the shareholders and management of the
Company. Mr. Leung has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biography
of the Company Secretary is set out in the section “Directors and Senior
Management” on page 40 of this annual report.

THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.
The requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Convening an Extraordinary Meeting by Shareholders”.
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person (other
than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at
the Head Office or at the Registration Office no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which such notices
to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days. The procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is posted on
the website of the Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

Information of the Group is delivered to the shareholders through
a number of channels, which include annual report, interim
report, announcements and circulars at the corporate website
(http://www.chinaysgroup.com). The latest information of the Group
together with the published documents are also available on the
Company’s website. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board in writing through the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Room 1616, 16/F, Tower Il

Lippo Centre No 89 Queensway, Admiralty,

Hong Kong

Website: www.chinaysgroup.com

Tel No.: (852) 2776 5228

Fax No.: (852) 2994 9699

The Company will handle both telephone and written enquiries from
shareholders from time to time. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
will be forwarded to the Board and/or relevant Board Committees of the
Company, where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional Documents

During the Review Period, the Company did not make any changes to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the current version of which is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
Number of shares

Our total number of shares outstanding in 31 December 2014 is

400,000,000. The company will periodically announce the total number
of issued shares in its monthly returns.
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Important schedule for shareholders - AGM

Our AGM will be held at Admiralty Conference Centre, 18048, 18/F,
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong on
20 May 2015. Details of the AGM and resolutions will be dispatched at
the time together with this annual report.

Information for Hong Kong branch registrar

Tricor Investor Services Centre
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel No: (852) 2980 1333
Fax No: (852) 2810 8185
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website: www.tricoris.com
Office Hours: 9:00 am — 4:30 pm
(Monday to Friday, except public holidays)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the Code but also about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. The Company will continue to
review and, where appropriate, improve the current practices on the basis
of the experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views
and suggestions from the shareholders to promote and improve the
transparency are also welcomed.

On behalf of the Board

Li Cheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) on
19 April 2012. The registered office of the Company is at Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business is at Office 1616, 16th Floor,
Tower Two Lippo Centre, No. 89 Queensway, Hong Kong. The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding and those of its subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group are
principally engaged in the developing and manufacturing of polyester
filament yarns, the provision of dyeing services of differentiated polyester
filament fabric and trading of textile raw materials and products in PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company and the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31
December 2014 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
and the financial conditions of the Company and the Group as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 75 to 178.

REORGANIZATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS
FROM SHARE OFFER

Pursuant to a reorganization scheme to rationalize the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s ordinary shares with
a nominal value of HK$0.01 each on the Stock Exchange, the Company
became the holding company of the companies currently comprising the
Group on 28 December 2012.
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As part of the preparation for the listing of the Shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange, the Company implemented a capitalization
issue of 297,327,010 Shares and an issue of 100,000,000 new
Shares under the share offer (the “Share Offer”) in November 2013.
The net proceeds of the Share Offer received by the Company were
approximately HK$81,500,000. These proceeds are intended to be
applied in accordance with the proposed application set out in the
section headed “Future plans and use of proceeds from the Share
Offer” in the prospectus of the Company dated 15 November 2013 (the
“Prospectus”) and the announcement dated 26 November 2013 for the
Share Offer.

The Company’s Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 27 November 2013 (the “Listing Date”).

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the financial year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on
page 80.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had distributable reserves
of approximately RMB222,475,000 (2013: approximately RMB
223,988,000 (restated)) available for distribution to the shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share capital and share option scheme are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements and the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme of the Company” below, respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend (the “Final
Dividend”) of HK$0.04 per Share of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2014. The proposed final dividend, if approved by
the shareholders at the AGM, will be paid to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 28 May
2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the financial year are
set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 16.2% of the Group’s total sales and the sales attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 5.4% of
the Group’s total sales. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 18.7% of the Group’s total purchases and
the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 4.4% of the Group’s total purchases.

So far as is known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in
“Connected transactions and related party transactions” section in this
report, none of the Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the share capital of
any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations in 2013 totalling RMB 798,000
(2014: nil).

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014 are set
out in note 22 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year up to the date of
this report were

Mr. Li Cheng (Z=#) (Chairman)

Mr. Zhao Jidong ( ## 3 ) (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Li Conghua ( Z=Ha%E)

Mr. Ma Qinghai ( 5 &8 )

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (££3%)

Mr. Shiping James Wang ( T )

Dr. Wang Huaping ( £ ) (appointed on 19 August 2014)
Mr. Duan Xiaoping (/)N ) (resigned on 19 August 2014)
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Mr. Zhao Jidong, Mr. Shiping James Wang and Dr. Wang Huaping are
due to retire from the Board at the forthcoming AGM. Being eligible, they
offer themselves for re-election. None of the retiring Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographies of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM (“Directors for Re-election”) are set out on pages 35 to
38. Except as disclosed in such biographies, the Directors for Re-election
have not held any other directorships in any listed public companies in
the last three years. Further, except as noted in the biographies, none
of the Directors for Re-election is connected with any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company
and, except as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interest and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme of the Company” below, none of
them has any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 7
November 2013 (except for Dr. Wang Huaping, whose service contract
commenced on 19 August 2014) subject to termination, among
others, by giving not less than three-month notice in writing. Each of
such Directors will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at AGM of the Company every three years. Mr. Zhao Jidong, Mr.
Shiping James Wang and Dr. Wang Huaping are entitled to an annual
director’s fee of HK$100,000 (equivalent to RMB80,000 at exchange
rate of HK$1.25/1RMB), as proposed by the Board and approved by
the shareholders of the Company. Director’s fees are payable on a
time pro-rata basis for any non-full year’s service. In addition, for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Zhao Jidong received
annual remuneration, including retirement scheme contributions, of
RMB460,000, plus a discretionary bonus as determined by the Board
with respect to the director’s performance. The remuneration of these
Directors has been determined with reference to the individual’s duties,
responsibilities and experience, and to prevailing market conditions.
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During the Review Period, Mr. Duan Xiaoping has agreed to waived
the director’s fee in the service contract dated 7 November 2013.
The amount waived in 2014 amounted to HK$63,172 (equivalent to
RMB50,538 at exchange rate of HK$1.25/1RMB). Saved as disclosed
above, no Directors have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Review Period or at any time during
the Review Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Review Period.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders during the Review Period.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the
financial year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its ultimate holding
company or any subsidiary of that ultimate holding company a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the Review Period and up to and including the date of this
annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, interests or short positions in the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) held by the
Directors and chief executive of the Company which have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) are as follows:

(A) Long position in the Shares

B R
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Number of
shares held/  Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
i HEER
BEEnE 5 HE BROEE REEDL
Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li”) (Note) Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
A ([ZFEEAE]) (FIFE) R EE R
Note: Mr. Li beneficially owns approximately 79.61% of the issued Wit: TELEEHAERRIKBRRAL

share capital of Ever Thrive Global Limited which in turn,
beneficially holds 206,471,700 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Li is
deemed or taken to be interested in all our Shares held by Ever
Thrive Global Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Li is the
sole director of Shun Sheng Global Limited and Shun Sheng
Global Limited is accordingly accustomed to act in accordance
with Mr. Li’s directions. Therefore, Mr. Li is deemed or taken
to be interested in all our Shares held by Shun Sheng Global
Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Li is also the sole
director of Ever Thrive Global Limited.
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(B) Long position in shares of associated
corporation

Report of the Directors
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(B) REB EERGNER

Number of
Name of Associated shares held/  Percentage of
Name of Director Corporation Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
i HEEER
EEnE HEEE AR 15, HE KROEE REBEDL
Mr. Li Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 371 79.61%
£ s HERERFERAR EnEAA
Apart from those disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2014, BRAXEREEIN RZE—ONF+ZA

none of the directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any of the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) that is required to be
recorded and kept in the register in accordance with section 352
of the SFO or any interests required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group:
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Number of
Shares held/  Percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
s EEER
BERERE B B tE BROEE REFDL
Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 206,471,700 51.62%
BB IRIRAR A A EnfAA
Shun Sheng Global Limited Beneficial owner 93,528,300 23.38%
JEREIRIRA R A A EmEAA
Ms. Chen Fangqin (Note) Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
BRS A2 4 (MIEE) RELEERER
Nice Investments Limited Beneficial owner 32,000,000 8%
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Note: Ms. Chen Fanggin is the spouse of Mr. Li. Therefore, Ms. Chen Fanggin
was deemed, or taken to be interested in all our Shares which are
interested by Mr. Li for the purposes of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR
SUBSIDIARIES

Huvis Corporation holds 30% of the equity interest in Hangzhou Huvis
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Limited as at 31 December 2014. For detalils,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Yongsheng Chemical Fiber” set
out in the section headed “History and development” of the Prospectus.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7
November 2013 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants under the
Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe the Shares to any employees (full-time or part-time), directors,
consultants or advisor of the Group, or any substantial shareholder of the
Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on 7 November 2013,
subject to early termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an
option is offered to a participant; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date on which an option
is offered to a participant; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share on the date
on which an option is offered to a participant.
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the Listing
Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the
Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company does not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue unless
approved by the shareholders of the Company and issue of a circular and
all other information in compliance with the Listing Rules.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of securities available for
issuance under the Scheme was 40,000,000 Shares, which represented
10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

During the Review Period, no share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed and there was no outstanding share option under the
Scheme as at 1 January 2014 and as at 31 December 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(A) Connected transactions - continuing
connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered into
the following continuing connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting and annual review requirements set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out below:

1.

Lease Agreement

As Yongsheng Group is an associate of Mr. Li, Yongsheng
Group is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 25 December 2012, Yongsheng Dyeing and Yongsheng
Group entered into an agreement pursuant to which
Yongsheng Dyeing agreed to lease part of its owned land
situated at Jingjiang Industry Zone (Qing Six Lane), Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC with a
gross floor area of approximately 10,260.08 square metres
to Yongsheng Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 January 2013 and ending on 31 December 2014 in
accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated therein
(the “Lease Agreement”).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, rental income
received from Hangzhou Yongsheng Group amounted to
approximately RMB574,000, which is within the annual cap
of RMB930,000 as disclosed in the Prospectus dated 15
November 2013.

Master Bonded Warehouse Storage Services
Agreement

On 7 November 2013, Yongsheng Group and Yongsheng
Dyeing entered into an agreement pursuant to which
Yongsheng Group agreed to provide its storage services in
the Properties to our Group from time to time for a term of
two years commencing from 1 January 2013 and ending
on 31 December 2014 in accordance with the terms
and conditions stipulated therein (the “Master Bonded
Warehouse Storage Services Agreement”).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, storage service
fee paid to Hangzhou Yongsheng Group amounted to
approximately RMB110,000, which is within the annual cap
of RMB720,000 as disclosed in the Prospectus dated 15
November 2013.
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1.

Master Procurement Agreement

As Huvis Corporation is a substantial shareholder of
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Huvis Corporation is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

On 12 November 2013, Huvis Corporation and Yongsheng
Chemical Fiber entered into an agreement pursuant to which
our Group agreed to purchase textile-related products for
trading and production of differentiated polyester filament
yarn from Huvis Corporation and/or its associate(s) from time
to time for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2013 and ending on 31 December 2015 in accordance with
the terms and conditions stipulated therein (the “Master
Procurement Agreement”).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, purchases from
Huvis amounted to approximately RMB36,698,000, which is
within the annual cap of RMB68,000,000 as disclosed in the
Prospectus dated 15 November 2013.

Confirmations from the independent non-executive Directors
and auditors of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the
Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

(ii) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where
there is no available comparable terms, on terms no
less favorable to the Company than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

(i) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

1.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
has engaged the auditors of the Company to perform
certain assurance procedures on the continuing connected

Bk EMARAIE14A561K ESEEE
BARRGBMESEWERSHETE
TEERF -REMETIE ARFZ%

HENE MESERME MR ER bt
the Company provided a letter to the Board confirming that BERERS:
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

transactions. Based on the work performed, the auditors of

()  have been approved by the Directors; () EBEESHE:

(i)  were entered into in accordance with the pricing iy WERNRABKEEBBREKEL:
policies of the Company;

(i) were entered into in accordance with the terms of the (iy WBEREZERZHEBEH RGN
relevant agreements governing such transactions; 1A &
and

(v)  did not exceed the annual cap amounts for the year vy TEBEHEZE-_ZT—NF+=A

=+—RALEEFENFELRER -

(B) BELSXRS

ended 31 December 2014.
(B) Related Party Transactions

RARBEREXBBREPETNERABESTR
SHFBTINBIRERMEICR TR - ZF
RET R ZMEBK —BARELMRUAER
TRENBERS HELEXABERXS-HE
MERS| —BAAERIN ZEXFERE
FHARAEIIAT ETIRER T -

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business of the Group are provided under
note 36 to the financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed, except for
those described above in the paragraphs headed “(A) Connected
transactions — continuing connected transactions”, in respect of
which the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT FRENARERE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and RABREBHR BREARAMENARENREE

within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the EHA-ARRERELEMABEZAREHT D

Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less than 25% RARBBEBEITRND25%M A RFRE -

of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the financial year.

AUDITORS

The financial statements now presented have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 18 May
2015 to 20 May 2015, both days inclusive, for the purpose of determining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming AGM to be held on
Wednesday, 20 May 2015, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the
AGM, Shareholders should ensure that all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 15 May 2015.

Report of the Directors
EEaRE
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The Board recommends the payment of a Final Dividend of HK$0.04 per
Share to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Thursday, 28 May 2015. The payment of the
proposed Final Dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting. If the resolution for the proposed Final Dividend
is passed at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members will be
closed from 27 May 2015 to 28 May 2015, both days inclusive, and the
proposed Final Dividend is expected to be paid on Wednesday, 17 June
2015. In order to qualify for the proposed Final Dividend, Shareholders
should ensure that all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2015.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five financial years is set out on pages 179 to 180 of this annual
report.

By Order of the Board

LI Cheng

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 27 March 2015

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwc

To the shareholders of
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 178, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2014, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEAEBRXR

As at 31 December 2014 R_ZF—WF+_-_A=+—H

2014 2013
—ZET-MmF —F—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
[{hg=3 AR¥ET R AREF T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Land use rights bR A A 6 30,964 31,781
Property, plant and equipment VI S MR 7 134,285 131,063
Intangible assets mEEE 8 6,198 7,006
Deferred income tax assets EEMBMEE 10 8,416 8,573
179,863 178,423
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 11 87,829 113,162
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWRIA I e W R HR 12 128,981 126,105
Prepayments, deposits and TERZRE - ZE R
other receivables b e A 13 10,342 20,058
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEABRD
profit or loss TREE 14 - 757
Restricted cash ZRHI3E e 15 12,937 118,387
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEEYD 16 128,695 166,559
368,784 545,028
Total assets EEHE 548,647 723,451
EQUITY =
Share capital & s 17 3,165 3,165
Share premium A& (7 % (8 17 235,512 235,512
Other reserves HAth 18 (30,654) (33,680)
Retained earnings IRE&F 131,919 87,510
Equity attributable to shareholders of ViN/NGI) S Sy
the Company 339,942 292,507
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R = 30,296 24,634
Total equity ESEER 370,238 317,141

KEFTMRIAR AR
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" As at 31 Dece

2014 2013
—EF-mF —F—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
[{hg=3 ARET AREFIT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Borrowings BR 22 - 25,000
Other non-current liabilities Hin3emeEhasE 23 12,325 13,132
12,325 38,132
Current liabilities RESE
Trade payables B 5 R FRIE 20 105,535 116,829
Advances from customers PR 7,131 8,084
Accruals and other current liabilities JEETREEEM RS & E 21 35,610 27,278
Current portion of other non-current liabilites  E i 3EREN B B ENEREE 23 807 807
Amounts due to related parties FEA B3 5 B 36(b) 5,990 7,513
Current income tax liabilities BIHAFRS IR B & 9,011 11,096
Borrowings (57 22 2,000 196,571
166,084 368,178
Total liabilities BEREHE 178,409 406,310
Total equity and liabilities EakaELEE 548,647 723,451
Net current assets REBEEFE 202,700 176,850
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABER 382,563 355,273

The notes on pages 83 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated FEBIE178EMMI T AZEE HUBEREN—H -
financial statements.

The financial statements on page 75 to 178 were approved by the Board FISE1T8EMUBHRERER T —RAF =A==+t

of Directors on 27 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf. AEEEeETHAINTAIRARES-
LI CHENG ZHAO JIDONG
=3 R
Director Director
EF ZF
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Balance Sheet of the Company

AAREEERER

As at 31 December 2014 R_ZF—WF+_-_A=+—H

2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
[ihg=3 ARET ARBEFT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries RH B A F e 9 218,712 155,535
218,712 155,535
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables &1+ FUIE - 14 K
H fth pE Y SR IE 13 187 114
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 16 17,848 86,043
18,035 86,157
Total assets HWEE 236,747 241,692
EQUITY e
Share capital [N 17 3,165 3,165
Share premium B 10 B 17 235,512 235,512
Other reserve Efb s 18 (4,486) (5,258)
Accumulated losses 2ETE1E 19 (8,551) (6,266)
Total equity ESEER 225,640 227,153
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other current liabilities Rt IE R EM BB EE 21 863 6,010
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHIE A B FA 10,244 8,529
11,107 14,539
Total liabilities EERE 11,107 14,539
Total equity and liabilities ExRAEEE 236,747 241,692
Net current assets REBEEFE 6,928 71,618
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 225,640 227,153

The notes on pages 83 to 178 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements on page 75 to 178 were approved by the Board
of Directors on 27 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf.

LI CHENG
=3
Director

EBEF

FEIR17T8EMM T AZEYHREN —E5H -

BISEIT8EMMBHEIENR —T—HF=A -1+t
HEEEeHETHIATALIRRES -

ZHAO JIDONG

AR

Director

EF

KEFTMRIAR AR
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For the year e
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARMT T AREF T
Revenue W z5 5 1,379,008 1,767,423
Cost of sales SHE R 25 (1,237,089) (1,638,586)
Gross profit EF 141,919 128,837
Other gains, net H i 58 24 2,832 7,420
Selling expenses HEM X 25 (19,593) (16,075)
Administrative expenses THHAX 25 (51,978) (42,360)
Operating profit mERF 73,180 77,822
Finance income =N 28 2,480 6,897
Finance costs b & B AR 28 (5,783) (19,617)
Finance costs, net BbE R AR ER (3,303) (12,720)
Profit before income tax MR AT 8B AR R 69,877 65,102
Income tax expense FRisHif = 29 (12,843) (16,577)
Profit for the year F @A 57,034 48,525
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2@
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss AIREEF DB EIBHIER
— Currency translation differences — BB EEE (337) (980)
Other comprehensive income for FREMZEKES
the year, net of tax ($ERBIE) (337) (980)
Total comprehensive income for the year F R 2 H K& E 5 56,697 47,545

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
aftRERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
[{hg=3 AR¥ET R AREFIT
Profit attributable to: AT EEAE SRR
Shareholders of the Company ZIN/NE ) 47,897 40,024
Non-controlling interests eI AR = 9,137 8,501
57,034 48,525
Total comprehensive income UTEGZEKRZEEEE:
attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company ZN/NET) 3 47,560 39,044
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 9,137 8,501
56,697 47,545
2014 2013
—F-mEF =F—=
RMB RMB
AR AR
Earnings per share for profit attributable 7~ 2 7] IR R FE/EE R B9
to the shareholders of the Company BRER
— Basic —HK 31 0.12 0.13
— Diluted —#E 31 0.12 0.13

o

The notes on pages 83 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated FBIE17T8EMM T AZEA MM EHREN —HH
financial statements.

2014 2013

—F-mF —F=F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

[{hg=2 AR¥ET R AREFIT

Dividends BRE 33 12,668 -

KEFTMRIAR AR
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A=+

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AATRRERS
Share capital Non-
and Share Other Retained controlling Total
Note premium Reserves earnings Total interests equity
RAER
Bt zx RAEE Hibfife REEF @ FERER BHAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-Z-=5-F-8#H
123 160,413 (34,815) 49,601 175,199 16,133 191,332
Comprehensive income ZHEA
Profit for the year ERREF - - 40,024 40,024 8,501 48,525
Other comprehensive income Htt2EMBA
Currency translation differences ERBREEE 18 - (980) - (980) - (980)
Total comprehensive income 2ERABE - (980) 40,024 39,044 8,501 47,545
Transactions with equity holders ~ EEZEEANR S
Issuance of new shares BATHRG 17 78,264 - - 78,264 - 78,264
Appropriation to statutory reserves AREETHRRE 18 - 2,115 2,115) - - -
Total transactions HEZHEANRSAE
with equity holders 78,264 2,115 2,115) 78,264 - 78,264
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-=5+ZA
=t+-BHER 238,677 (33,680) 87,510 292,507 24,634 317,141
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-Z-mE-B—-AH
<1 238,677 (33,680) 87,510 292,507 24,634 317,141
Comprehensive income ZEEA
Profit for the year FRE - - 47,897 47,807 9,137 57,034
Other comprehensive income Htt2EMA
Currency translation differences EHhEEE 18 - (337) - (337) - (337)
Total comprehensive income ZHEBWALE - (337) 47,897 47,560 9,137 56,697
Transactions with equity holders ~ EEZXHFANK S
Acaquisition of additional interest in i — R B A AR
a subsidiary BIMER 18 - (125) - (125) (475) (600)
Dividend paid to non-controling mIEERERS TRE
interests - - - = (3,000) (3,000)
Appropriation to statutory reserves PEBELTHEE 18 - 3,488 (3,488) - - -
Total transactions HERHEANRSAE
with equity holders - 3,363 (3,488) (125) (3,475) (3,600)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-Z-mE+=A
=+-ANES 238,677 (30,654) 131,919 339,942 30,296 370,238

The notes on pages 83 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-MmF —T—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARMT T AREF T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERE
Cash generated from operations LRSS 32(a) 111,331 (9,276)
Interest received B U F &8 4,936 11,154
Income tax paid EATSH (14,770) (8,542)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEBRE (FA)
operating activities ReFHE 101,497 (6,664)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHREERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E W%  BiE MR E (15,601) (6,350)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BEMEBEN
plant and equipment P15 RUE 32(b) 259 2,482
Loan repayments from related parties MESEEER - 6,482
Loan repayment received from a third party W E|—BE=FEEER - 20,819
Proceeds from disposal of investment inan & R B R BIHIRE B
associate FIECE S - 8,440
Decrease of restricted bank deposits BRI SR1TF FRORL 105,450 13,009
Proceeds from disposal of HEEMEREEDN
other financial asset 8RR - 190,716
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZRQAFEFTABED
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEERNTEHIA 765 -
Cash paid for acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —KWE A F
TS8R & - (3,146)
Net cash generated from investing activites & & /EE TSR & F4E 90,873 232,452
KB FTM AR AR]

2014F 3R
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2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARMT T AREF T
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary share BT BROATE IR - 91,827
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE R TS 3RE 76,205 335,097
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests R FE 2 IR M R 1+ AR B (3,000) -
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary 4 i — & M B 2 71H)
EHIMER (600) -
Repayments of related party borrowings EEBETER - (2,994)
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (296,292) (539,226)
Interest paid ERFE (6,010) (20,549)
Net cash used in financing activities RETBMARSFEE (229,697) (135,845)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and REMREFED
cash equivalents (R /s (37,327) 89,943
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#1IR& MIREHEY
the year 166,559 75,700
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on ~ SMNEE R E B HIRE &
cash and cash equivalents ReEEYNTE (537) 916
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRASRRESESEY
of the year 128,695 166,559

The notes on pages 83 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19 April
2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the developing and manufacturing of polyester
filament yarns, the provision of dyeing services of differentiated
polyester filament fabric and trading of textile raw materials and
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “Listing
Businesses”). The directors consider the ultimate holding company
of the Company to be Ever Thrive Global Limited (“Ever Thrive”), a
company incorporated in the BVI and controlled by Mr. Li Cheng
(the “Controlling Shareholder”).

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 27 November
2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB?”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Company’s Board
of Directors on 27 March 2015.

1.

—REHR
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FUNA+TNARBEREREARE(ZT—
ZEEIA)EHRSHESIMKR LI AER R
BBR A F] e AR B89 5% 1 9 % AR 3k /3 Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands °
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For the year ended

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4 below.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following standards have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for the financial year beginning
on or after 1 January 2014:

Amendment to IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments:
Presentation’ on offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. This amendment clarifies that the
right of set-off must not be contingent on a future
event. It must also be legally enforceable for all
counterparties in the normal course of business,
as well as in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy. The amendment also considers
settlement mechanisms. The amendment did not
have a significant effect on the Group financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORI RAR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

@

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’ on
the recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets. This amendment removed certain disclosures
of the recoverable amount of cash-generating units
(“CGUs”"), which had been included in IAS 36 by the
issue of IFRS 13.

Amendment to IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’ on the novation of
derivatives and the continuation of hedge accounting.
This amendment considers legislative changes to
‘over-the-counter’ derivatives and the establishment
of central counterparties. Under IAS 39 novation
of derivatives to central counterparties would
result in discontinuance of hedge accounting. The
amendment provides relief from discontinuing hedge
accounting when novation of a hedging instrument
meets specified criteria. The Group has applied the
amendment and there has been no significant impact
on the Group financial statements as a result.

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for an
obligation to pay a levy if that liability is within the
scope of IAS 37 ‘Provisions’. The interpretation
addresses what the obligating event is that gives rise
to the payment a levy and when a liability should be
recognised. The Group is not currently subjected to
significant levies so the impact on the Group is not
material.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

@

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Other standards, amendments and interpretations
which are effective for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2014 are not material to the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 ‘Accounts
and Audit’ of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from the
Company’s first financial year commencing on or after
3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the changes in the
Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely
to be significant and only the presentation and the
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements will be affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—=F

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

©)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2014, and have
not been applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete
version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces
the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS
9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”)
and fair value through profits or losses. The basis of
classification depends on the entity’s business model
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are
required to be measured at fair value through profit
or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in OCI not recycling.
There is now a new expected credit losses model
that replaces the incurred loss impairment model
used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were no
changes to classification and measurement except
for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in
OCiI, for liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss. IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for
hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line
hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic
relationship between the hedged item and hedging
instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the
same as the one management actually use for risk
management purposes.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

Contemporaneous documentation is still required
but is different to that currently prepared under IAS
39. The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption
is permitted. The Group is yet to assess IFRS 9’s full
impact.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of
financial statements about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue
is recognised when a customer obtains control of a
good or service and thus has the ability to direct the
use and obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS 11
‘Construction contracts’ and related interpretations.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 and earlier application is
permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of IFRS
15.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that
are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORI RAR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

@

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by IFRSs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

®)

(©

Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

24

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in these financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
Company’s functional currency is HK dollars (HKS)
and most of its subsidiaries’ functional currencies are
RMB. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—=F

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and other financial asset are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within ‘finance expenses, net’.
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
income statement within ‘other gains, net’.

All other foreign

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

U

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—=F

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to the profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or jointly controlled entities that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition. No provision for depreciation
is made on CIP until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated below.

Property, plant and equipment from capital contribution are
recognised initially at fair value, and are subsequently carried
at depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—=F

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset to its
residual value over its estimated useful life, as follows:

— Buildings 20-40 years 5% — 10%
— Plant and machinery 10-14 years 5% — 10%
— Vehicles 4-5 years 5% — 10%

— Office equipment, leasehold
improvements and others

2-5 years 5% — 10%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent upfront payments made for the
land use rights for self-use buildings. It is stated at cost and
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-
line basis, net of any impairment losses, if any.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

(a) Technical Know-How
Acquired technical know-how of manufacturing
processes is shown at historical cost. Acquired
technical know-how are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire the know-how and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

(b) Computer Software
Acquired computer software is shown at historical
cost and is capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire the specific software. These costs
are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

(c) Sewage Pipes Use Right
Acquired sewage pipes use right is shown at
historical cost and is capitalised on the basis of the
cost incurred to acquire the use right. The costs are
amortised over the contractual lives of 20 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_-_Z—WNE+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale

financial assets. The classification depends on the

purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

@

®)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and bills
receivables’, ‘prepayments, deposits and other
receivables’, ‘restricted cash’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.1 Classification (Continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FTESHHEME (&)

29 TREE (&)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued) 292 ERKE (&)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss’ category are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within ‘Other
gains, net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
and carried at fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as ‘gains and
losses from investment securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available for sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
income statements.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss — is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated income statements on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statements.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014

2. FESTHEHE (&)

211 ERMEERE (&)

(b)

TERUHREENEE
AEEREBREHRIEETER
ERLATHEEXLSREERS
H R E

HREBRS MEEXFER
AIREHER (Lﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁk$ﬁﬁiif-§ﬁ‘
FEMNZE BBANBERERR
TRMEEREEBBRMNE) KRES
BYNBRER  TRAE Ko
BRAAHREENER TANATE
g BRENES EERREE
BRERERREENSEM AR
BEEERAMHEEKERER-

0

MR EN S EH R FEKE
FREERER AT RE ERER
BE-WEFETABBEER 25t
BiE (R B A RBRQFED
ZH O REZEREEZNERR
RN EMREBESE) a#a
AR WEERER - EHES WS
EEEEWZ%E‘WZE‘ TAREBETEE
BiRA W EREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. TESHBERHE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Inventories 212 7

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods comprises raw
materials, labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity) but
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to owners
of the Company until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FTESHHEME (&)
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2.17 Borrowings 217

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year end

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable
temporary differences arising from the associate’s
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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For the year e

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

PRC employees of the Group covered by PRC
government-sponsored defined-contribution pension
plans under which the employees become entitled
to a monthly pension based on certain formulas. The
relevant government agencies are responsible for
the pension liability to these employees when they
retire. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to
these pension plans for the employees which are
determined at a certain percentage of their salaries.
Under these plans, the Group has no obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the contribution
made. Contributions to these plans are expenses as
incurred.

Housing benefits

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to
participate in government-sponsored housing
funds. The Group contributes on a monthly basis
to these funds based on certain percentages of the
employees’ salaries. The Group’s liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contributions payable in
each period.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_—_Z—WNE+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. TESHBRHE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
221 B4 (&)

2.21 Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
and land use rights are included in liabilities as other non-
current liabilities and are credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 W R

2.23 Revenue recognition

112

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Sales
are shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on
historical results, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods and materials
Sales of goods and materials are recognised on
the transfer of the significant risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the
time when the Group has delivered goods to the
customers and collectability of the related receivables
is reasonably assured.

(b) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014

WHEBEAREREEXEBTHEER
ER#Home KRR ENAFE- M
RHEBCHKEER - RE  mMRIT
o UEEEAEENAEHERE-

LS ES P LE DT SES I
SR AERAER: RAKESELY
B E RIAEER (TSR - A%
EE GRS RERREE 25
3R IR 2 ke BB 11 B 9 1
it o

(a) HEEmR#HH
Emk BN EERERNERREE
M E AR EH®E (—RAARE
BEgERRNTEFEBRER
FRIEHI UL B A] & IR B R ) HERR o

(b) FIEKA
MBWMAKBERFF AR -
Bk N YRR B R - AR E
FREERERETEESE (AEZ
TR REBRNEHTENEFRE
Bam)  WHERRITRESF
BN < 1B B R e MR IR O A
BN GE R B R RER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B PRI RAR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_—_Z—MNE+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases.

(a) Asalessee
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(b) Asalessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease,
the asset is included in the balance sheet based on
the nature of the asset. The revenue from operating
lease is charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

2.25 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.26 Dividend distributions

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders, where
appropriate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

Most of the Company’s subsidiaries’ functional
currencies are RMB as majority of the
revenues of these companies are derived from
operations in the PRC. The Group is exposed
to foreign currency risks with respect to sales
and purchases from overseas customers
and suppliers as well as foreign currency
denominated financial assets as at each
balance sheet date. The Group has not hedged
its foreign exchange risk. Details of the Group’s
trade and bills receivables, restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and
borrowings as at 31 December 2014, which
are denominated in currencies other than RMB,
are disclosed in Notes 12, 15, 16, 20 and 22
respectively.

At 31 December 2014, if US dollars had
weakened/strengthened by 10% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year would
have been lower/higher by RMB480,000
(2013: RMB13,883,000, higher/lower), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains
on translation of US$-denominated trade and
bills receivables, restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents and foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of US$-denominated trade
payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.

SO I AR R M R
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE
BEREREE (&)
3.1 MBERERREZE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against the RMB with
all other variables held constant, profit before
income tax for the year would have been lower/
higher by RMB40,000 (2013: RMB719,000),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of HK$-denominated cash
and cash equivalents.

At 31 December 2014, if EURO had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against the RMB with
all other variables held constant, profit before
income tax for the year would have been lower/
higher by RMB13,000 (2013: RMB13,000),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of EUR-denominated trade
and bills receivables.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk of funds
because investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated balance sheet
as at fair value through profit or loss. The
Group has not hedged its price risk arising
from investments in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

As the Group’s investments in funds are publicly
traded, their fair value is determined with
reference to quoted market prices.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash, the Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk primarily
arises from bank borrowings.

Bank borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group did not use any interest rate swap
contracts or other financial instruments to
hedge against its interest rate risk exposure
for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Management will continue to monitor interest
rate risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk exposure should the
need arise.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from trade and other
receivables, amounts due from customers for
contract work, and cash at bank. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
as at the reporting dates in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BXEKRERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEEREZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEERERE (&)
As at 31 December 2014, most of cash and cash RZE—MNE+_A=+—0" 8
equivalents, and restricted cash, were deposited in REBH IR & RIFSFEMMNER G
the major financial institutions in the PRC and Hong ReHEFERREERRRIFHHR
Kong with good credit rating. The Group categorises MEAXEZSHHEB - NEEKE
its major counterparties into the following groups: FEHHFTOBWNT
e Group 1 - Top 4 banks in the PRC (China . FE—H-—PEMEOART(HR
Construction Bank, Bank of China, Agriculture B ERTT  PRUERIT -
Bank of China, and Industrial and Commercial BERITRPETAERET)
Bank of China);
. Group 2 — Other major listed banks; and . FHE-HAEMETELWR
T &

. Group 3 — Other banks. FoF-HAMiRTT

The cash at bank balances as at 31 December 2014 RZFE—MOFER_FT—=F+=_A
and 2013, which are placed with these institutions are =+—H FRRLERERNRT
shown as below: WEBEHRITAT
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZF—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
Category =gl
Group 1 E—H 37,575 193,162
Group 2 - | 87,012 85,236
Group 3 E=4 17,007 6,469
141,594 284,867
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
and counterparties. These evaluations focus on
the counterparty’s financial position, past history of
making payments and take into account information
specific to the counterparty as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the counterparty
operates. Monitoring procedures have been
implemented to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivable balance at the end of
each reporting period to ensure adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with debt covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from banks and other financial
institutions to meet their liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. Management believes there is
no significant liquidity risk as the Group has sufficient
committed facilities to fund their operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_—_Z—MNE+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BXEKRERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEEREZE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEELER (&)

The following table details the remaining contractual TEREINAEEHGRMBERE I
maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities, which mHERERE (BEREAEOHN
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows Kol (WBIZB)IRFERFERGFTE
(including interest payments computed using BB AT 3R bA R AR SR B A] ge B A
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current P EFHENBRTELAREA -

at the year end) and the earliest date the Group may
be required to pay:

Between
Within 1 year 1 and 2 years
—FR —EZWE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREFT
At 31 December 2014 R=-ZE-NE+=-A=+—H
Borrowings (EE7S 2,000 =
Trade payables =) ANE 105,535 -
Amounts due to related parties FEfT & F A 5,990 =
Accruals, interest payable and other &5+ 3IE ~ &~ 7F'J BREAM
current liabilities (Not including RBEE(TEREENIER
payroll payable and tax payable) FERETE) 8,821 =
122,346 -
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+=-HA=+-—H
Borrowings B 196,571 25,000
Trade payables B 5 FIA 116,829 -
Amounts due to related parties JETRE 7’7",TA 7,513 -
Accruals, interest payable and other &5+ FUIB ~ JE I8 K H Ath
current liabilities (Not including MEBBE(TEEENIER
payroll payable and tax payable) e REIE) 14,547 49
335,460 25,049

SRR SR DNT
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for the Company’s shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash for bank
borrowings. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as
follows:

3. WBEARER (&)

3.2

EXmEpER

AEBEEREANBENAREAEED
FERLER tHAARARERREHK
(2] $R B A% H A AR AR PR A 25 DA K 4 55
BREERNEBLUREE RKA -

RERLABENGR NEBE KR
BIRN TRERABEE  ARREREEAR
BT BRI EEEAREER -

AEBRBENEOENERABFELE
BB L R UETEF R IALER
AE-BEHFRAERER (BEAHE
EBERITHEHRRIEEHER]D)
BEERREEEYREBBITERD
XRHBREHAE -BEAUGHEER
BERIIRE (Rt ] ER FRETE -

—TE—NEERZE—ZF+=A
+—HMEREELRNT:

%

2014 2013

—ZE—F —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Total borrowings (Note 22) Bk 4aEE (M 22) 2,000 221,571

Less: cash and cash equivalents R RReFED
(Note 16) (MizE16) (128,695) (166,559)
Restricted cash for bank BEBRITIEREI IR HI

borrowings (Note 15) Be (MIFE15) - (97,7083)
Net debt B FE (126,695) (42,691)
Total equity e85 370,238 317,141
Total capital BB 243,543 274,450
Gearing ratio EXREELE -52% -16%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UHEARERE (&)
(CONTINUED)

3.3 AR EMLE

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
including cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances, trade and other receivables; and financial liabilities
including trade and other payables, and borrowings,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.
The carrying values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets with a maturity of less than one year are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within
a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

MR AEEcREE(BREES LIRS
@Y XBHRITESKNE Z R
AREMEWHE) ReRAE (BEE
5 FEAS 3RIR KAt FE A SRIR A S 500
AHBAEE AtEREEREAFER
LZo-RFHALR-—FNEREE  FHE
EBEREAGTEEARSEAFENS
BHLAE

TRZFEAFENBERMARAEA
BENER oM AKER _T—HF
MZE—Z=Ff+_"HA=+—HERQAF¥E
JIEMEM TR -FEBABIEIETX
Praiim D BE AR FERBAN=(EE
i

s HREEXBBEEERTHORE
(RERE) () -

e KBE-RAMEREIN BEEX
BEAEER (AER)SKEE (A
REER)BERNBARE (=
) e

s EEXARIMKETEETHEH
B ABE (T BRE AR
B) (B=/) -
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s level 1 financial

assets that are measured as at fair value at 31 December
2013 and 2014.

BRREmEE (#)

3.3 AFEME ()

TRV AEBIEN —_E—=F R _T—NF
T+ A=+ HNATFEAENE —REmE
Eo

2014 2013
—E-NF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETF T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFAEENEREE
through profit or loss (Note 14) (Mf5E14) = 757

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experiences and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom be equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives for its
property, plant and equipment based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group
will revise the depreciation charges where useful lives are
different from previously estimated, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B PRI RAR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and intangible
assets

Impairment losses for property, plant and equipment,
land use rights and intangible assets are recognised for
the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts, being
the higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business, are determined
with reference to the best information available at each of
the balance sheet date. Changing the assumptions selected
by the Group’s management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the operating and growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Impairment of financial assets

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

4. BRETHERAE (&)

(b) ME -BERRE THERE
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

0}

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
comprehensive income statement. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated comprehensive income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the group uses
the criteria referred to in (i) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available for sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated comprehensive income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated comprehensive income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated comprehensive income statement.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventory is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expense. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management
reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet date.
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For the year ended

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes in various jurisdictions.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified as the
executive directors. The decision-maker reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Directors have determined the operating segment
based on these reports.

Directors consider the business from a business perspective,
and assesses the performance of the business segment based
on profit before income tax without allocation of finance income/
(costs).

The amount provided to directors with respect to total assets is
measured in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated
financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the
operations of segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—=F

SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s operations are mainly organised under the following
business segments:

- Trading: Trading of textile raw materials and products;
— Production: Production of polyester filament yarns;
— Processing: The dyeing processing of differentiated

polyester filament yarn.

Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights, property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, trade and
bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents. Unallocated assets
mainly comprise corporate cash.

Segment liabilities mainly comprise operating liabilities, amounts
due to related parties and borrowings. Unallocated liabilities mainly

comprise accruals and payroll payable.

(a) Revenue

5.

B Ot B R M
—mEF=AS+—ALFE

2HMER—AEE (K)

B5: EBEHBRMBRER
—HE: HSERKGEH:
—mI:  EREmERAREMT-

DHMEETZBBELHERE VE BER
B EBIZEE 78 BZEREFUAREEE
B FANRIE - RE R EAEWGRIE - ZRBIR
& fﬁé&iﬁ/\“ﬁ% APBEEETZBRRE
NAERE -

SHABIEAEGLEE RNBESX
B -AHRAEEEQERTE E&%H
T&-o

(@) Wz

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—-HLEE

2014 2013

—E-ImF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Trading g5 914,927 1,320,449
Production HE 317,602 318,747
Processing T 146,479 128,227
1,379,008 1,767,423

KB FTM AR AR]
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. 7WER-FKE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment information (b) 2 EBE R
The segment information provided to directors for the HE-_ZTZ—MNMF+-_A=+—HBIF
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2014 E REFREEAITRES S IH D EL
is as follows: BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-ME+-A=+-HLFE
Business segment Trading Production  Processing Total
S Yl g5 £E mT @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®TR AR%Tn AR%Tx
Revenue &
Sales of products EmEE 1,173,375 317,711 146,479 1,637,565
Inter-segment sales HEEEE (258,448) (109) - (258,557)
Revenue from external customers REIIARFME 914,927 317,602 146,479 1,379,008
Results ES
Segment gross profit DEEF| 22,693 69,687 49,539 141,919
Segment operating profit DEEEEF 6,856 50,564 29,706 87,126
Unallocated expense APERZ ~ (18.946)
Total operating profit meERTBE 73,180
Finance income BEWA 2,480
Finance costs BRAKA (5,783)
Profit before income tax BR AT S B AT & I 69,877
Other information Hitr g
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BEREETE
equipment 531 6,435 5,296 12,262
Amortisation of land use rights T R - 502 315 817
Amortisation of intangible assets EREAESE - 210 598 808
Provision for write-down of inventories 1 #577 & B & 1,957 322 - 2,279
Provision for impairment of receivables & U 74 18 5l (& B¢ 6 41 (29) - 12
Capital expenditure BARX 30 6,217 9,612 15,859
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B PRI RAR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. oHER-—XEEH (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2HEHR (&)
As at 31 December 2014
R-ZE-NF+=A=t-H
Business segment Trading Production  Processing Total
B3/ g5 £E mT st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR¥TRT AR¥TR AR%Tn
Segment assets NHEE 195,141 238,448 295,501 729,090
Unallocated assets ADEEE 18,049
Inter-segment elimination NP (198,492)
Total assets AERE 548,647
Segment liabilities SBEE 153,684 113,608 108,746 376,038
Unallocated liabilties AREaR 863
Inter-segment elimination A E L (198,492)
Total liabilities BEES 178,409
KB FTM AR AR]

201445k
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The segment information provided to directors for the
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2013

5. 7WMEN-—ZFXKH ()

(b) 7HEH (&)

HE-F-=F+-A=t-ALF
B AERRGEEARE D B

is as follows: BRI :
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-ZF+-A=1+-ALEE
Business segment Trading Production Processing Total
BN g5 EE nT ety
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFR
Revenue &
Sales of products EmHE 1,532,703 315,013 128,227 1,975,943
Sales of raw materials [RITREE - 4717 - 4717
Inter-segment sales HEBEHEE (212,254) (983) - (213,237)
Revenue from external customers KREIREPHME 1,320,449 318,747 128,227 1,767,423
Results ES
Segment gross profit AEER 26,238 58,343 44,256 128,837
Segment operating profit D EE LR T 11,899 45,759 33,202 90,860
Unallocated expense AOERY (13,038)
Total operating profit meERTBE 77,822
Finance income BMEWA 6,897
Finance costs BEMK (19,617)
Profit before income tax BR ATE B AT I 65,102
Other information Hitr g
Depreciation of property, nE BEREETE

plant and equipment 677 6,023 4,941 11,641

Amortisation of land use rights T R - 483 315 798
Amortisation of intangible assets BEREERH - 216 667 883
Provision for write-down of inventories i $573 & # & (77) 210 - 133
Provision for impairment of receivables & Uk 54 18 5l (& B¢ 6 349 38 (20) 367
Capital expenditure BARRX 42 4,783 1,336 6,161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. oHER-—XEEH (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) HHTER (&)

As at 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+ZA=+—H

Business segment Trading Production Processing Total
£B0%H g5 HE nT @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARERTT  ARETR ARETT ARET:

Segment assets NHBEE 312,617 257,675 234,978 805,270
Unallocated assets AOBEE 87,903
Inter-segment elimination PR Eakse (169,722)
Total assets EESBE 723,451
Segment liabilities AHBEE 268,976 160,631 140,406 570,013
Unallocated liabilities ANEERE 6,019
Inter-segment elimination n P (169,722)
Total liabilties BESE 406,310
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6.

LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP

The Group’s interest in land use rights represents prepaid
operating lease payment for land and its net book values were
analysed as follows:

6. tibEAE-A%EE

$%@Bf‘iﬁﬂ{f%%m% HIEAM LT
REMETIE ERIFESFTOT

2014 2013

—E-mE —E—=4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREF T

Opening net book value FYIRmFEE 31,781 32,579

Amortisation charges HEER (817) (798)
Closing net book value FIRERTFE 30,964 31,781

The Group’s land use rights are located in Hangzhou and Nantong
of the PRC and the remaining lease periods were between 10 to 50
years as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, land use rights with net book values of
approximately RMB12,322,000 were pledged as collaterals for the
Group’s bank borrowings (2013: RMB27,137,000) (Note 22).

Amortisation of land use rights has been charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

AN E2 B /9 £ B (E AR R R AN K m @
—E-NE+_AZ=Z+—8 & TTHHEIRN
F10E504F »

RZE—MF+ZA=+—8 EEFELY

ARM12,322,000L (ZFE—=ZF: AR¥

27 137,00070) &)+ A E LA S B iR
TEREFR AT R (H:F22) °

T ERERIED N A HRERERPHGN
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2014 2013

—E-NF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AREFIT

Administrative expenses TR X 523 510
Cost of sales SHE R 215 209
Others Hob 79 79
817 798
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7. V¥ BERZE-—KEEH
GROUP
Office
Plant and equipment Leasehold  Construction-
Buildings machinery Vehicles and others  improvements in-progress Total
BAERE
BF  EEREH "E REf RERE ERIR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETRT  ARETRT  ARETX

At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%F-F—H
Cost AR 78,153 111,646 6,905 6,807 955 4,617 209,083
Acoumulated depreciation 2ithE (15,892) 43,639) (4,545) (5,511) (645) - (70,232)
Net book amount REFE 62,261 68,007 2,360 1,296 310 4617 138,851
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z-=f

TZAZ+-BLEEE
QOpening net book amount FOEEFE 62,261 68,007 2,360 1,206 310 4,617 138,851
Additions RE 232 2,014 253 202 177 3,283 6,161
Transfers &% - 5,690 - - - (5,690) -
Depreciation bk (2.364) (8,002 (770) #10) 95) - (11,641)
Disposals e - (1,787) (“2) - - (479) (2.308)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 60,129 65,922 1,801 1,088 30 1,731 131,083
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+ZA=1+-H
Cost kA 78,385 116,174 6,733 6,954 1,132 1731 211,109
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (18,256) (50,252) (4932) (5,866) (740) - (80,046)
Net book amount REFE 60,129 65,922 1,801 1,088 39 1731 131,083
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-NE

T-A=1-BLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 60,129 65,922 1,801 1,088 392 1,731 131,063
Additions RE 31 6,189 882 455 135 8,167 15,859
Transfers i - 2,309 - - - (2,309) -
Depreciation ik (2,378) (8,581) (809) (300) (194) - (12,262)
Disposals e - (83) (292) - - - (375)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 57,782 65,756 1,582 1,243 333 7,589 134,285
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mF+=A=1-AH
Cost A 78416 124,505 6,479 7,207 1,267 7,589 295,553
Accumulated depreciation 2ithe (20,634) (58,749) (4,897) (6,054) (934) - (91,268)
Net book amount EmFE 57,782 65,756 1,582 1,243 333 7,589 134,285
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
GROUP (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

ME- -BERRE-FEE
(%)

FERXERNEHEAKRERTMBRAT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HILEE
2013
—T—=fF
RMB’000
AREFTT

Cost of sales SHE KA
Administrative expenses TR 2
Selling expenses HEMX
Others Eh

9,029
2,147
107
358

11,641

As at 31 December 2014, buildings with net book values of
approximately RMB35,128,000 were pledged as collaterals for the
Group’s bank borrowings (2013: RMB43,903,000) (Note 22).

R-ZZE-—NE+-A=+—B REFEY
AR#35,128,0000c (ZZE—=F: AR
43,903,00070) WIEFE R A LB MRITHER
LR ARG (H5E22) °




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 8. EEEE-ZXKHE
Intangible assets represent technical know-how related to B EEEABALEMBRAEBENRMAM
advanced fabric dyeing and finishing process, sewage pipes use MoK EFEREMEREE EEZE W
right and computer software. Movement was as follows: T~
Sewage
Computer Technical pipes
software know-how use right Total
BKE
AEREY s3Ik ERE @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R-B-=%-5—H
Cost B% 225 7274 2,400 9,899
Accumulated amortisation ZatHH (132) (1,348) (530) (2,010)
Net book amount REFE 93 5,926 1,870 7,889
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_Z-=f%
TZA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOREEE 93 5,926 1,870 7,889
Amortisation charge BHER 22 (741) (120) (883)
Closing net book amount FREEEEE 7 5,185 1,750 7,006
At 31 December 2013 RZB-=ZF+ZA=+-H
Cost AR 225 7274 2,400 9,899
Accumulated amortisation Rt (154) (2,089) (650) (2,893)
Net book amount REFE 71 5,185 1,750 7,006
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZ-_ZT-DmF
TZA=+-ALEFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 71 5,185 1,750 7,006
Amortisation charge BHER (24) (664) (120) (808)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 47 4,521 1,630 6,198
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-ME+=-A=+-8H
Cost A 225 7,274 2,400 9,899
Accumulated amortisation RErEHE (178) (2,753) (770) (3,701)
Net book amount REFE 47 4,521 1,630 6,198
KEFRARAT
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 8. BIEEE-AKE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Amortisation expenses have been charged to the consolidated BHEATEOREHRARERTIIBROT

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-—A=+—HLEE

2014 2013

—E-lmF —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AREF T

Cost of sales SHERA 784 861
Administrative expenses TBZ 24 22
808 883

9. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 9.

(a) Interest in subsidiaries

REARNER A2

(a) RHMIBLAAER

2014 2013

—E-IF —E-=F

RMB RMB

AR AR

Investments in unlisted shares, at cost ~ FF_E AR IR E » #AK A 6 6
Advances to subsidiaries — non-current [ B A FIHI B K —IER 218,712,425 155,534,959
218,712,431 155,534,965

Advances to subsidiaries represent equity funding provided
by the Company and are measured in accordance with
the Company’s accounting policy for investments in
subsidiaries. It is unsecured and non-interest bearing.

1 36 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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o.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B PRI RAR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

9. RINBLAANER AT

(%)

(a)

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2014, all of which are unlisted, are as follow:

RHE LB AvERE (F)

R-E—NF+-_F=+—H AQ7
FEMBRR (2EHARLEM) WFBEN
T

Particulars of
Place of incorporation and Principal activities and issued and fully
Name type of legal entity place of operations paid share capital Interest held
&R MR IBAREEERER TEERREENY BRIRARRARE a2 ER
2014 2013
~E-mF —T=F
Yongsheng Advanced Materials  Limited liability company incorporated Investment holding company USS1 100% 100%
(BVI) Limited in The British Virgin Island in Hong Kong (Directly held) (Directly held)
XEFHE (BV) BIRAT REBRLESEMAUNAERAR  REAREREER 1% 100% 100%
(EEER) (E%HH)
Yongsheng Advanced Materials ~ Limited liability company incorporated Investment holding company USS$1 100% 100%
(HK) Limited in Hong Kong in Hong Kong (Indirectly held) (Indirectly held)
XEFH (BB ERAR  REBERRUNERAR REBLERELR 1ET 100% 100%
(BEEE) (HERH)
Yongsheng (HK) International Limited liability company incorporated Trading of textile raw materials and US8500,000 100% 100%
Co., Limited in Hong Kong products in Hong Kong (Indirectly held) (Indlrectly held)
& (ER)ERERAR REBEMAUNHERAR REEREHBRMHRERES  500000%7T 100% 100%
(B#&5H) (BEHA)
Yongsheng Dyeing and Limited liability company incorporated Provision of dyeing services RMB200,000,000 100% 100%
Finishing Company Limited inthe PRC inthe PRC (Indirectly held) (Indirectly held)
("Yongsheng Dyeing’)
MM ESLKELE ReEEMR IO ERAR R B SR L ERS AR 200,000,007 100% 100%
BRAR ([KELE]) (B#&&H) (BEHA)
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Limited liability company incorporated Trading of textile raw materials and RMB11,000,000 100% 100%
Yongsheng Foreign Trading inthe PRC products in the PRC (Indirectly held) (Indirectly held)
Company Limited
MMBLXZENESERAR ReEERRUHERAR REEREHERMERERES  AR¥1,0000007 100% 100%
(B#&&H) (BEHA)
Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Limited liability company incorporated Developing and manufacturing of RMB40,000,000 70% 70%
Chemical Fiber Company Limited  in the PRC polyester filament yarns in the PRC (Indirectly held) (Indirectly held)
("Yongsheng Chemical Fiber’)
MMNESLABAERAT  NERRRINERAA R AL EFREREE kAR AR840,000,0007 0% 70%
(Tkekfe]) (B#&&H) (BEHA)
Nantong Yongsheng Fiber Limited liability company incorporated Developing and manufacturing of RMB30,000,000 92% 90%
Advanced Materials Company in the PRC polyester filament yarns in the PRC (Indirectly held) (Indirectly held)
Limited (‘Nantong Yongsheng’)
BREKBEETMHERAR  RAEERRIHERAR R AL EFREREE kAR AR30,000,0007 92% 90%
(Tr@KE]) (B#&&H) (BEHA)

KEFTMRIAR AR
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9. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December
2014 is RMB30,296,000, of which RMB27,693,000 is for
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber and RMB2,603,000 is attributed
to Nantong Yongsheng. Set out below are the summarised
financial information for each subsidiary that has non-

9. RMBARNER -—ARQF
(%)

(b)

ERFERERS

RZE—NFE+ZA=+—HAHEER
25 4858 B A R #30,296,0000T - H
AR #27,693,0007T T4 B A Kk B # &
AR #2 603,0007T )5 55 B 7 FE B KB o
LTHEHNSEEEREROSWEB AR

controlling interests. RIS ERIBEE
Summarised balance sheet: EEEEREE:
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Nantong Yongsheng
3314 EEKR
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE 2= ZB-Qmf —T-=%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETR ARETR
Current bk
Assets BE 82,919 82,318 67,662 84,680
Liabilities B (21,644) (42,541) (87,017) (112,530)
Total current net assets/(liabiliies) ~ RENEE,/ (BE) FELE 61,275 39,777 (19,355) (27,850)
Non-current E i)
Assets BE 33,244 37,240 54,633 53,454
Liabilities B (2,209) (2,379 (2,738) (3,188)
Total non-current net assets ERBEEFELE 31,035 34,867 51,895 50,266
Net assets BEFE 92,310 74,644 32,540 22,416

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

9. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 9. RAMEB A RIMNELRE — & Q A

(CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (b) EXFEEZERER (&)
(Continued)
Summarised income statement: WERBE:
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Nantong Yongsheng
KB ARk
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-QmE -—T-=-F CZET-QNE —T-—=
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT AR®TRT ARETR

Revenue gz 212,233 241517 127,756 94,615
Profit before income tax BRETEH AR 33,937 36,405 13,702 7,573
Income tax expense FrgRAx (6,268) (9,947) (3,577) (1,932)

Post-tax profit from continuing REFEEBHNBRTERT

operations 27,669 26,458 10,125 5,641
Total comprehensive income HAENmeE 27,669 26,458 10,125 5,641
Total comprehensive income AREFZHERENGE N e

allocated to Non-Controling

Interests 8,300 7,937 837 564

Dividend paid to Non-Controlling ~ [RI3EFE AR % B 5 &
Interests 3,000 - - _

7\ %* K ‘(t /\E
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) Material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Summarised cash flows:

9. RMBARNER -—ARQF

(&)
(b) EXRFERES (&)

REREHE:
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Nantong Yongsheng
KB EREKE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-mE %= —B-mE  —Z-=

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTT ARBTR ARETL

Cash generated from/(used in) wEmE/ (FR)Ba

operations 37,040 50,954 39,965 (14,418)
Interest paid EAFIE (52) (1,138) (3,679) (3,725)
Income tax paid BRFER (8,753) (3,208) (1,565) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) &4 EBHFT{E,/ (FTH) R FE

operating activities 28,235 46,608 34,721 (18,143)
Net cash used in investing activites X & EBMAE S FE (48) (46,326) (5,969) (4,361)
Net cash (used inj/generated from ~ BV&JEE) (FTFE) /FIEREFE

financing activities (26,000) (1,000) (28,806) 50,288
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand B4 MR L ZEMEM/ (B ) FE

cash equivalents 2,187 (718) (54) 27,784
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRE LR EEY

beginning of year 1,548 2,417 30,368 2,588
Exchange losses on cash and Be kR TENAERE

cash equivalents (297) (151) (6) @)
Cash and cash equivalents FRONAE LR EEY

at end of year 3,438 1,548 30,308 30,368

The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B PRI RAR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

10. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 10. BEEFBH -—F&EH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The net deferred income

RIBEFFSHEERAE
HEHE MEELEAEHRER -REEEEH
iy - B AT 3 8 o 03 3 1RO JE P 1S 0 45 R B

BRI ITHENE

tax balances after offsetting are as follows: R
2014 2013
—F-0F —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R ARBFT
Deferred income tax assets: BEMMSHEE
— to be recovered after more than 12 months ~ —#§7+ 1@ A& U@ 3,065 3,283
— to be recovered within 12 months — R+ @A AU E 5,351 5,290
8,416 8,573
The gross movements in the deferred income tax account are as RIEFTISBIAR B B E
follows:
2014 2013
—E-QmF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFT
Beginning of the year F9) 8,573 10,794
Debited to the consolidated statement of FFAGPHRA R ER (FE29)
comprehensive income (Note 29) (157) (2,221)
End of the year FR 8,416 8,573
Movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without BREFGEMEERABREZ D CRAEF REHERA
taking into consideration the offsetting of balance within the same —BIBREEEANEHR) AT
tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
KB FTM AR AR]

201445k

141



142

-

10. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

10. BEREH -AEE (&)

(CONTINUED)
The movements in deferred tax assets: BEHIBEEEMNED
Provision Provision for Changes in
for write- impairment Pre- fair values of
down of Deferred of  operating financial
inventories income Accruals receivables  expenses assets  Tax losses Total
FENA L Ee SREE
B EERA  EHRE REBG KEAREX AVE#D HEEE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AREFTRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=§-A-H 1,466 3374 1,823 1,302 39 38 3,968 12,010
Recognised in the consolidated ERAGEANERA
statement of comprehensive income &2 33 91 621 36 (39) (38) (2,268) (1,564)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+=A=1-H 1,499 3,465 2,444 1,338 - - 1,700 10,446
Recognised i the consolidated BREHGEENERA
statement of comprehensive income &2 (843) (215) 3,192 (308) - - 59 1,885
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-mE+=A=+-A4 656 3,250 5,636 1,030 - - 1,759 12,331

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profit is probable. The Group did not
recognise cumulative deferred tax assets of RMB1,316,000
(2013: RMB1,316,000) in respect of tax losses amounted to
RMB5,264,000 (2013: RMB5,264,000) that can be carried forward
against future taxable income as at 31 December 2014.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

10. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

11.

(CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

10. BEFREH -AKE (F)

ERERIRABENOEESHMT

Unrealized Unrealized
investment interest ~ Withholding
income income tax Total
AER RER
REWA FEBA B @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE-=%—Hf—A (1,216) - - (1,216)
Recognised in the consolidated statement of EREHEERERARER
comprehensive income 1,216 (700) (1,173) (657)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=f+-A=1+—H - (700) 1,173 (1,873
Recognised in the consolidated statement of ERaftaaliarNER
comprehensive income - 695 (2,737) (2,042)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—ME+=-A=+—H - (5) (3,910) (3,915)
INVENTORIES - GROUP 1. FE-FKE
2014 2013
—E—lmEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Finished goods BURK oh 72,765 104,361
Raw materials R 15,509 11,752
Work in progress ERE 2,178 3,044
Less: provision B s (2,623) (5,995)
87,829 113,162

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the cost of inventories
recognised as cost of sales amounted to approximately
RMB1,232,510,000 (2013: RMB1,633,160,000).

BE-2-—ME+-A=+—ALLFE-

ERRBAEHEHEKANGTEXREALAEAR
#1,232,510,000c (ZE—=F: AR ¥

1,633,160,0007T ) °

KEFHM R ARAE]
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11.

12.

INVENTORIES - GROUP (CONTINUED) 1. BE-X£E (&)

Movements of provision for inventory are analysed as follows: GFEREEHIMMAT
2013
—E-=4F
RMB’000
ARBEFT
Beginning of the year F9) (5,862)
Addition RE (133)
Write-off b=t _
End of the year FR (5,995)
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - 12. EZRBREBERERREE K&
GROUP
2013
—T—=F
RMB’000
AREFIT
Trade receivables B 5 YW RIE 94,006
Bills receivable e IR 37,207
131,213
Less: Provision for impairment JB R (5,108)
Trade and bills receivables — net B SR & R R F 5 126,105




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B PRI RAR R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

12. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES -

GROUP (CONTINUED)

The Group’s sales are normally made on credit terms of 30-90
days. Ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date

was as follows:

12. ESRURERBRREE -X&E

& (%)

REE —RIZTFI020H B EEHETIH
E-EZREFERER A HOEREK DT

T

2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R ARBTT

Trade receivables: B 5 W FIA :
Less than 3 months LR=M@A 84,338 71,694
3 to 6 months =ZX@A 3,424 10,546
6 months to 1 year NEAE—F 1,125 5,451
1to 2 years —EWFE 1,929 1,384
2 to 3 years ME=F 134 1,128
More than 3 years BBE=F 4,807 3,803
95,757 94,006

Ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade receivables was

as follows:

BB HIME KRB E R B 5 18 WA KR i 2 1T 10

T~

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT

Trade receivables: 2 5 FEW A
3 to 6 months =ZXEHA 3,424 10,546
6 months to 1 year NEAE—F 1,125 5,451
1to 2 years —EWFE 1,929 1,207
6,478 17,204

KM R ARAE
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12. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - 12. 85
GROUP (CONTINUED) (&)

As at 31 December 2014, based on the past experiences and
review of the operating situation with the customers, the directors
are of the view that past due trade receivables, amounting to
approximately RMB6,478,000 (2013: RMB17,204,000) were not
impaired, as there has not been a significant change in their credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

The ageing of bills receivables is within 180 days, which is within
the credit term.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables

WREREBKRREE-&XE

R-E—MNME+-_A=+—8B BEBEL
BERNERPHNKEBRL EFRAE 4
BARYB,478,000 (ZE—=F: AR
17,204,0007T ) #9 B 2 A & 5 F& R0 IE 18 KR
B REARSENEELEETNEENEE I

ARRA 2B OZEER-

MR ENRRB180BR  BEEHA-

AEEE S REGALEBERENRTENLT

were denominated in the following currencies: TEREE
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Trade and bills receivables are denominated in: 2 5 Jig W 5018 K fiE Uk 2= 4%
TR T3 B EHE -
RMB AR 71,532 101,372
Uss$ ETT 62,256 29,706
EUR BT 134 135
133,922 131,213

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

12. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - 12. EZEWNAREREREE -XE
GROUP (CONTINUED) (&)
Movement of the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as B ZRWGEREREE SN T
follows:
2014 2013
—E-lmEF —EF—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
At beginning of year F9) (5,108) (5,116)
Provision for trade receivables E 5 W GRIE R (188) (225)
Write-off of receivables as uncollectible 9 4 R U R IR R A AT B] 3R E 355 233
At end of year FR (4,941) (5,108)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables is charged to B REYGFIEREREFEC R EHEGRERERD
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of TR ARG (M5E25) - REER B F ik
comprehensive income (Note 25). Amounts charged to the K 58 — AR PO TE AT pE U B BB SN R & B RS o

allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovery of additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date REZANRXNEERRAE S EUGIER IR
is the carrying value of the trade receivables. [EIRI=RS
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(a) Group

13. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 13. EIRIE - & R E M EWERIE -

RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY AEERAERQT
(@ F£%

2014 2013

—E-mEF —E-=f

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFT

Prepayment to suppliers B R T A TR A SR IE 5,651 13,609
Deposits and other receivables e R H AR FRIE 3,070 3,179
Prepaid expenses FER RIS 1,166 766
Interest receivables JE WA B 385 2,841
Value-added tax recoverable AU Bl HEE 231 -
10,503 20,395
Less: provision for impairment JB B (161) (337)

Prepayments, deposits and other AR RIE B R HAM

receivables — net FE WK IE 58 10,342 20,058

Movement of the provision for impairment of other

receivables is as follows:

H b R BB EREESMNT

2014 2013

—F-mF =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

At beginning of year F9) (337) (199)
Reversal of provision/(provision) Efh el R E R E R D

for other receivables (B5) 176 (142)

At end of year FR (161) (337)

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

13. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 13. AfRNIE - RERHEHMBERRIE -

RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY AEERAERAT (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Group (Continued) (@) &&%ME (&)
Impairment provision for other receivables is charged to HtEURIBREREERE M Ea K
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of wmERMITHASZ PR (MFE25) « &
comprehensive income (Note 25). Amounts charged to the HEEREPIRNSE —MRTEHRTREK
allowance account are generally written off when there is no 5] 8 FN R < BRE A8 o

expectation of recovery of additional cash.

HHRAEERRSIENHIE-

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet REE
I Ho i JE R IE RO BRI (E ©

date is the carrying value of prepayments, deposits and biraca
other receivables.

+
=]
7

(b) Company (b) &AF
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 81~ 7 7 & .t & Uk 3118 187 114

7\ J}?‘-XE* K ‘(l /\E
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14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

14. BAFEFAEZNESHEE -

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP AEH
2014 2013
—E-NF —ZET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFT
Listed in the PRC:
— Funds - 757

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represented
trading security. The fair values of this security is based on their
closing bid prices in an active market. Changes in fair value of
and gains or losses on disposal of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in ‘other gains, net’ (Note 24).

15. RESTRICTED CASH - GROUP

Restricted cash were denominated in the following currencies:

BRATEAABRNEREES

b D B S
EEEES o

EFNAFERBEAREED S ENKRTE
ANEBFE -BRAVFEFABRSNEREENAD
FEEZFHMEERENBRLA [HEREF

BN (HE24) -

15. ERFBE-FKH

XRHREATIEEEH

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

RMB 11,541 114,859
us$ 1,396 3,528
12,937 118,387

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited

Annual Report 2014



15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORI RAR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

RESTRICTED CASH - GROUP 15. FRFBE—FE£H (&)
(CONTINUED)
Restricted cash refers to deposits pledged for letter of credits and SRR HIER BB B KRITIE RE 1R AT
bank borrowings as collaterals: m K
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMEF T
Letter of credits Z A& 12,937 20,684
Bank borrowings (Note 22) HRITIE (MI5E22) - 97,703
12,937 118,387

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
GROUP AND COMPANY

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash in hand and demand
deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following
currencies:

RERREFEV-FEERE

N FE]

16.

RekReSEMETFRASREHMER-

RelReEEMUTIEREE:

Group Company
XEE VYN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-QmE —T-=f CZB-QmE _"T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT AR¥TR ARETR
RMB ARE 119,744 132,627 17,747 80,397
Uss$ e 8,554 26,842 3 -
HK$ BT 397 7,190 98 5,646
128,695 166,559 17,848 86,043
KEEFTMEAR AR
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - 16. RERASEEY - FEEREK
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) YNCING )
RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in international ARBERIZ BT EERKE TS A B LR
market. The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign B HBRUARBEENEHBINE RIKEF
currencies and the remittance of the foreign currencies out of B B () 1N 25 52 B Fh B R R A 445 9 AR A 0 B 4
the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign i #8% Bl Sz 38 51 BT A8 BR o

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

17. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM - 17. BRAKBRHHRE - FEEREA

GROUP AND COMPANY Gl
Number of
shares Ordinary shares
R EE ZER
‘000 HK$'000
T FET
Authorised shares: EERA:
At 31 December 2014 and 2013 RIB-—NER-T—=4F
(ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each) +=—A=+—H
(ER0.01EBITHELER) 2,000,000 20,000
Issued shares and fully paid up: ERTRAORSHBERR:
Number of Share Share
shares capital premium Total
RE#E R B4 i 1E @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TR ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F— 2,000,000 16 160,397 160,413
Issue of shares to Ever Thrive in 2013 (a) RZE—=FMn \ ?"ﬂﬁxfn( a) 672,990 5 - 5
Capitalisation issue on 27 November 2013 (b) RZE—=F+—A=++A
BRI EI(D) 297,327,010 2,353 - 2,353
Issue of shares on 27 November 2013 (b) RZE—=%+—A=+tH
BT (b) 100,000,000 791 75,115 75,906
At 31 December 2014 and 2013 RZE-MER=ZT—=F
+-A=1+—H 400,000,000 3,165 235,512 238,677

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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B ORI RAR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

17. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM -
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(@

On 31 January 2013, 672,990 shares at par value of HK$0.01
were allotted and issued to Ever Thrive at consideration of
HK$6,730 (equivalent to RMB5,400) by the Company.

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the Company’s
board of directors and shareholders on 7 November 2013,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$380,000 (divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each) to HK$20,000,000 (divided into 2,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each) by creation of an additional 1,962,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each.

The Company capitalised an amount of HK$2,973,270
(equivalent to RMB2,353,000) credited from share premium
account as a result of the public offering of shares of the
Company (the “Capitalisation issue”) and to appropriate such
amount as capital to pay up in full at par 297,327,010 shares for
allotment and issue to the persons whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 6 November 2013 in
proportion to their then existing shareholdings in the Company,
each ranking pari passu in all respects with the shares then in
issue.

On 27 November 2013, the Company completed its initial public
offering of 400,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each at a price
of HK$1.18 per share, comprising 100,000,000 new shares
offered by the Company and 300,000,000 existing shares of
the Company offered by the shareholders of the Company.
The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the same date. Total
listing proceeds, net of listing expenses of RMB15,084,000,
resulted in an increase in issued share capital of the Company by
RMB3,144,000 and share premium by RMB75,115,000.

17. REAERGDEE-XXEBRAD
= (%)

@

ARRR-_ZTE—=F—AF=+—BIRAEE
0.0178 7 (A5 X fic 3% K 2% 17672,9908% A& 7
R A& 56,7305 7T (HHE K ARES5,4007T) ©

BEARREEEERERR T —=F+—
A+tHBBMEEAZR ARAREER
AN © 4 38 1 2 58 M ,962,000,0000% & I &
E0.017%8 7T M B 13 T B380,00078 7T (5 &
38,000,0000% &A% E{E0.0178 JTTA AR 15 ) 1200
220,000,000/ 7t (% £2,000,000,0008% &
REEEO.01B LRI AR ) »

ARl BEARBEERRTRS M ERSD
R ERSSHEIRAFRIE2,973,270/8 7T (1B
RARK2,353,0005T) EFRE A ([ B A3
1)) B A REFRIB D B A B UIRAERE
2 2297,327,0101 B M EAR MR =T
—=F+—ARNBRIARABREEMMA
TIZE S E R AR E K IR A R L I Al 5
NET M FERELETHSROBES
FEREREEITROZERSER -

R-E—=%+—A-++HB AAF=
MAFRIASE THNERERNAHEE
400,000,000/% &A% E{EO.01/E JTLHIAR 1D - B
R D B3 #9100,000,00008 357 I K B
RN ] P& R 3 B #9300,000,0000% A 2 &) 3R
BRG -REH RRABBRHETEHER
SEAERABEIR e EHATS KBRS
(k& LRI SZ ARM15,084,0007T ) EHA
N BITIRAIE A1 A R #E3,144,0007T & B
13 B 18 1 AR #75,115,0007T ©

KEFTMRIA R AR
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1'IE?)rtheyear'e ded &

18. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND
COMPANY

18. HAbGH G~ AEMRAADT

(@) Group (@) &~KH
Statutory
Others reserves Total
Hite EERE @
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it &t ARBTT AREFT AREFRL
At 31 December 2012 R-T-—45+-A=+-8 (46,005) 11,190 (34,815)
Currency translation differences EMHEES (980) - (980)
Appropriation to statutory reserves ARELTERE @ - 2,115 2,115
At 31 December 2013 RZE-—=F+-A=+—H (46,985) 13,3056 (33,680)
Currency translation differences EHpEES (337) = (337)
Appropriation to statutory reserves NEEETHE (a) - 3,488 3,488
Acquisition of additional interest W —RNB AR
in a subsidiary BBIMER (b) (125) = (125)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-NFE+-A=1+—H (47,447) 16,793 (30,654)
(@  As stipulated by regulations in the PRC and the Articles (@ A EDER R AR B AR A R B A
of Association of the Company’s subsidiaries established AIMARGE TR A RIFTAR E - 7P BIRK 32 A BT
in the PRC, the subsidiaries established in the PRC are BRAIERDIREZFATHETRBRAREE
required to appropriate 10% of their PRC GAAP after- FRFERN (REHEBTEEENEERE)
tax profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses) to statutory F10%BE X TERBATES WE BRHEHLE
surplus reserve fund before distributing their profit. BIEBE B A RIRARS50%  AInl 212
When the balance of such reserve reaches 50% of each LHER - ETRBAESTANEHERT
subsidiary’s share capital, any further appropriation FEBBNEITAR-
is optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be
utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares.
()  On 1 March 2014, the Group acquired a 2% equity ) RZZE—WF=ZA—H AEEURSAKRE

interest in Nantong Yongsheng, a subsidiary, from the
non-controlling shareholder at cash consideration of
RMB600,000. The carrying amount of the acquired
non-controlling interests on the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB475,000. The difference between
the consideration paid and the acquired non-controlling
interests, amounting to RMB125,000 was credited into
the other reserve. Upon the completion of the acquisition,
the Group has a 92% equity interest in Nantong
Yongsheng.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

18. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND 18. HitiE A EBRA QT
COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Company (b) AT
Other reserve
Hit &
RMB’000
ARBFT
At 31 December 2012 R-E—=—F+=—A=+—8 -
Currency translation differences MEHEE (5,258)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-R=+—H (5,258)
Currency translation differences ERER 772
At 31 December 2014 RZE—ME+_-_R=+—H (4,486)
19. ACCUMULATED LOSSES - COMPANY 19. 2t BB -XAF
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with RARBTBREANRBH AR AIEE ARIE
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of BB A AREK2285000T (ZE—=F: AR
RMB2,285,000 (2013:RMB5,915,000). 5 .915,0007T ) °
The movement on the accumulated losses was as follows: EFFEERNESNT
Accumulated
losses
e F ]
RMB’000
ARBFT
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZFE—=F—H—HN&EH (351)
Loss for the year FEBE (5,915)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=%F+_A=+—B0N&EH (6,266)
Loss for the year FEER (2,285)
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZT—MFE+_A=+—HH4&EH (8,551)

7\ J}?‘-XE* K ‘(l /\E
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20. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP

20. BHENHE-—AEE

2014 2013

—Z—lmF —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Trade payables B S E A 105,535 116,829

Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date was as

EHRNRBERBEZAHNREITT

follows:

2014 2013

—E-mEF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Less than 6 months DR SE A 100,584 109,898
6 months to 1 year NMAAE—F 2,873 5,104
1to 2 years —EWF 466 296
2 to 3 years ME=F 154 285
More than 3 years Bilm=F 1,458 1,246
105,535 116,829

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were

AEEEHERNFIANRASREA TGRS

denominated in the following currencies: g

2014 2013

—E-mF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT
RMB AR 32,750 16,492
us$ eV 72,785 100,337
105,535 116,829

1 56 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

21. ACCRUALS AND OTHER CURRENT 21. Bt REREMRBEE-—FXE

LIABILITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY IS NUNE]|
Group Company
X&H b ON
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE ey :3 —E-mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR¥®TR ARETH
Accrued payroll EATIE 17,597 6,001 797 86
Pension and other social welfare payables BT RIKS REME BT 5,493 5,033 - -
Accruals FEET R 5,287 8,860 66 5,924
Value-added and other taxes payable FEfTEER R EMTIR 3,787 5,838 - -
Payables for purchase of property, BEME BELREN
plant and equipment e 308 1,832 674 = -
Deposits e 717 244 - -
Others Hity 897 628 - -
35,610 27,278 863 6,010
22. BORROWINGS - GROUP 22, BERR—AEE
2014 2013
—B-DF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMEF T
Non-current JERNHEA
Non-current portion of REFRITERAIERNEAEE
long-term bank borrowings - 25,000
Current Bp AR
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings & Bi$R 77 & ZX B9 BN EAZE > - 46,000
Short-term bank borrowings RERITER 2,000 150,571
2,000 196,571
Total borrowings AR 2,000 221,571
Representing: b=
Unsecured B - 41,395
Pledged BE A 2,000 180,176
2,000 221,571
KB FTM AR AR]

201445k
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22. BORROWINGS - GROUP (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2014, bank borrowings of RMB2,000,000
were pledged by buildings with net book value of RMB35,128,000
(Note 7) and land use rights with net book value of
RMB12,322,000 (Note 6).

As at 31 December 2013, bank borrowings of RMB86,471,000
were pledged by restricted bank deposits of RMB91,273,000,
bank borrowings of RMB5,705,000 were pledged by restricted
cash and bills receivable of RMB6,430,000 and RMB200,000
respectively and bank borrowings of RMB88,000,000 were
pledged by buildings with net book value of RMB43,903,000 (Note
7) and land use rights with net book value of RMB27,137,000
(Note 6).

Analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings by type
and currency was as follows:

fER-AKE (&)

R-ZE—MmWE+_A=Z+—H AR¥
2,000,000 T KIERITIERTIUABEEFEAAR
#35,128,000 L MEF (Mi37) RREFES
AR #12,322,000 T ) i 5 FA 4 (Fi5E6) 1B
e

WZE—=ZF+_A=+—H8 ' AR¥
86,471,000 T B ER1T {8 RUA A R #91,273,000
THXBEBTFREER MARE
5,705,000 MR ITE KA D B A AR ¥
6,430,0007T % A R #200,0007T 09 5 R §I| 35 &
REWEHRELGR & ARMS8,000,0007TH)
RITIE R AR FE A A R¥%43,903,0007TH
B (H37) REEEFEAARE27,137,000
TLH) T A (B 3E6) EE R -

AEBEFEAERBEREENOMMOT

2014 2013
—E-QmF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

At fixed rates in RMB ZEEFMEFT B R
UARMEETE 2,000 47,000

At floating rates in RMB REFBAEFER
NAREHE - 76,000

At floating rates in US$ REBAEGFER
NETFE - 98,571
2,000 221,571

The weighted average interest rates per annum were as follows:

I ER FMT

2014 2013
—2-mE =
RMB AR 6.08% 6.62%
Uss$ e 2.06% 3.79%
EUR BL T - 2.43%

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

22. BORROWINGS - GROUP (CONTINUED) 22, BR—FKE (&)

The maturity of borrowings were as follows: EREEBHBENT
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETFT
Within 1 year —F N 2,000 196,571
1 year to 2 years —FEWF - 25,000
2,000 221,571
The fair values of current bank borrowings appropriately equal BARITIREERMN  WEHRITERNRFE
their carrying amounts as the discounting impact is not significant. HEHEEmMEMRS -FEHRTERNERER
The carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current bank NFEWNT

borrowings are as follows:

2014 2013
—2-mE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARET T
Carrying amounts REE - 25,000
Fair values N¥E - 25,074
The fair values of bank borrowings are based on cash flows HITEROAFENBRERSEERARAS
discounted using the annual interest rate published by the People’s ARBITRMHRBRITERFFRITIAHIE
Bank of China for long-term bank loans prevailing at each balance EMEFTE -
sheet date.

SKBR TR ING
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23. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - 23 HittERBEB -4 &
GROUP
Other non-current liabilities referred to government grants were as HEM3EnBAaBEEBNTEDET
follows:
2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Government grants BT E B 13,132 13,939
Less: current portion B EEE Y (807) (807)
12,325 13,132
The movement on the government grants was as follows: B EBEFHMT -
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARETF T
Beginning balance of the year FAEEER 13,939 13,652
Grant received during the year FREZED - 1,000
Amortised as income (Note 24) B AWA (M5E24) (807) (713)
Ending balance of the year FIR SR 13,132 13,939
Government grants were provided to the Group to support its BN EBIEL B AEEETNIMNEE LA
purchase of land use rights and intangible asset in Hangzhou and BREFEERTEBEEZRENETER -
the plant expansion in Nantong. In Hangzhou, the amounts were N BHESBERENRAN BRI ER
deferred to match with amortisation of related land use rights FH D B BN T48F E50F K84 B i # 4 48
and intangible asset over an expected useful life of from 48 to 50 i AEREREE BRIEEZMBEEM
years and 8 years respectively. For Nantong’s plant expansion, 5 AR REURAENBEHRAIERFTH
the amount was deferred to match with depreciation of the related 105 BRI EE AR R AR 4 o

equipments over the expected useful lives of 10 years.

1 60 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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24. OTHER GAINS, NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORI RAR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

24, BN R EE

2014 2013
—Z—lmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Subsidy income (a) EETONE) 1,158 2,846
Rental income e WA 1,084 1,429
Government grant (Note 23) BT & B (HMi5E23) 807 713
Commission income He A 524 582
Fair value gains on financial assets BEATEFAEENESREEDN
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 14) NFEEWE (HFE14) 8 112
Reimbursement for transportation expense (b) & % 5 % # E () - 953
Losses on disposal of financial assets HEZRAFEFABED
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEENEBE - (382)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, HEME BERZED (EE)
plant and equipment, net (Note 32(a)) /W w5 R EE (M 5E32(a) ) (116) 174
Depreciation and amortization e 8 (437) (437)
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains (Note 30) SME (E518) WS (KisE30) (708) 1,207
Others HAh 512 223
Other gains, net H bl s R 58 2,832 7,420
(@  Subsidy income primarily represents tax refund by local tax (a) WAL A =BT S BRI LASE

bureau to encourage the Group’s business growth and other
subsidies granted by the Bureau of Finance in Hangzhou and

Nantong, the PRC.

(b)  This represents reimbursement of transportation expense by

the Bureau of Finance in Hangzhou, the PRC, in respect of the
Group’s purchases of cotton from Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous

Region, the PRC.

R £2 B 4% 78 75 Ko o B AT M AN R 5B B IR
B % AR L A S

IR S B BN B B Bt AN SR E e
MEgERAARBEREREMENNE

B

KEFTMRIAR AR
201445k

161



25. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, sales tax, selling expenses and

25 ZMEESENRX

FFAHERA EER HERAXRITBRAX

administrative expenses were analysed as follows: WHRZ DT
2014 2013
—Z2—nmEF —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREBFT
Changes in inventories of finished goods and &K A M ER MITF EE )
work in progress 32,461 36,867
Raw materials consumed and FRFER R MR R BT iR A B FE @
consumable used 1,148,521 1,545,711
Utilities charges NRAEEKRE 20,150 21,305
Transportation cost ERKAR 10,369 13,052
Employee benefit expenses, including directors’ B E & FIfI S (BIEEEME)
emoluments (Note 26827) (BfsE26%27) 60,000 37,637
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 6&788) T8 R # &5 (HizT6 K% 74 K&8) 13,450 12,885
Stamp duty, property tax and ENTERE - ¥ 2B M H A
other surcharges B N Lk & 6,665 7,326
Travelling and entertainment 7 iR K% JE A 3,507 3,093
Bank charges RITHE 1,547 1,780
Provision for impairment of receivables JE R TE R (B B A
(Note 12&13) (FF#E12%13) 12 367
Office rental WAEHES 1,208 1,359
Professional service expenses HERBKHX 2,399 473
Listing expenses X - 10,251
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ELRN BN & 1,350 1,277
Provision for write-down of FEMOR RS (HE11)
inventories (Note 11) 2,279 133
Others FHAh 4,742 3,505
Total cost of sales, sales tax, HEMA ERH -
selling expenses and HEMS MITHA X B8
administrative expenses 1,308,660 1,697,021

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 26. EERAMAX
2014 2013
= ik —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Salaries, bonus and other welfares e LA R E AR 54,889 33,637
Defined contribution plans FEHRGHE 2,051 1,623
Social security insurance HERERE 3,060 2,377
60,000 37,637
27. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 27. EENSREEEMNS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<E
The emoluments of individual director of the Company which ARARMERNEENME (FT AR F26
were included in the employee benefit expense as disclosed HEMNESRAMZ)EIWOT

in Note 26 were set out below:

2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMF T

Directors’ emoluments =
- Fees —8e 527 75
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ & MoEaL 1,342 431
— Discretionary bonus — B TEAT 3,970 220
— Social security insurance — e RERE 120 32
5,959 758

3} E__%* S INT
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27. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For year ended 31 December 2014

27. EEREREEEMNSE (&)

(@) EE=M< (&)

BE-Z-—NE+-A=+—HLFE

Social
Salaries and  Discretionary Security
Name of Director EENS Fees  allowances bonus Insurance Total
e HeREH BRERL HERERR /it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETr  AREFTR ARETR ARETn ARETR
Executive directors WniES
Mr. Li Cheng THEE 79 403 737 30 1,249
Mr. Zhao Jidong HERLE 79 430 1,317 30 1,856
Mr. Li Conghua SREEL 79 241 54 30 404
Mr. Ma Qinghal &gkt 79 268 1862 30 2239
Independent non-executive directors BUEHRTES
Mr. Shiping James Wang THFEE 79 - - - 79
Ms. Wong Wai Ling HEERLT 103 - - - 103
Mr. Wang Huaping TEFEE 29 - - - 29
Mr. Duan Xiaoping N E - - - - -
527 1,342 3,970 120 5,959
For year ended 31 December 2013 HE-ZE—=F+-A=+—HLFE
Social
Salariesand  Discretionary Security
Name of Director EESES Fees  allowances bonus Insurance Total
we  FekEy WEEL HERERR =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT  ARETr ARETR ARETn ARETx
Executive directors HniES
Mr. Li Cheng oL 12 66 80 8 166
Mr. Zhao Jidong R 12 127 80 8 007
Mr. Li Conghua FRELE 12 123 5 8 148
Mr. Ma Qinghai BEELE 12 115 55 8 190
Independent non-executive directors BUEHTESR
Mr. Shiping James Wang TFEE 12 - - - 12
Ms. Wong Wai Ling FERLT 15 - - - 15
Mr. Duan Xiaoping NP E - - - - -
75 431 220 32 758
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

27. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 27. EEREREEEMS (&)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EUBREHAL
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the five individuals HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HIHF
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group include E-AEERAUERFATEE=S (=
three (2013: one) directors, whose emoluments are reflected T—=F:—R)EF FEEOH2ER
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the ExXnsfiR-mMESBME(ZETE—=
remaining two (2013: four) individuals were as follows. FOF)RERFATIHOBMES0T
2014 2013
—E-lEF —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Salaries and allowances e KRR 887 1,892
Discretionary bonus EIEIELL 2,498 270
Social security insurance HERERR 34 35
3,419 2,197
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals fell within AfimmF AT cSEENT

the following bands:

2014 2013
—E-NEF —EF—=
Emolument bands B & &5 2]
RMB1,000,000 and below AR #1,000,0007T & A T - 5
RMB1,000,001 - RMB1,500,000 AR #1,000,0017tE
AR #1,500,0007T 2 -
RMB1,500,001 - RMB2,000,000 A R#1,500,0017c 2
AR #2,000,0007C 1 -
RMB2,000,001 — RMB2,500,000 AR ¥2,000,0017TE
AR #2,500,0007T 2 _
5 5
During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no HE_ZT—MER_ZT—Z=ZF+T=A
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals received —t+—BLEFE BEFESEMNAMES
any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join or FATHEBEKDAEET WM ERR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. BIAREE AR INARE B 525
SE BB E -

7\ %* K ‘(I /\E
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28. FINANCE COSTS, NET

28. BB WA FEE

Interest expenses on bank borrowings HRITIEFMEF X

Net exchange losses/(gains) on financing LA EEDIE H g5 1E S ()
activities (Note 30) FFE (MH3E30)

Total finance cost L& K AN 4278

Interest income from cash and RekBEFED-

cash equivalents, restricted cash deposits
and other financial asset

ZRHRE TR
Hib & BEERFSHA

Total finance income

BB WAL

Net finance cost

2013
—ET—=F
RMB’000
AREEF T

20,630

(1,013)

19,617

(6,897)

(6,897)

12,720




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 29. FREBLBAX

2014 2013
—2-mE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Current income tax BNERFTIS R
— Enterprise income tax —EMEH 12,686 14,356
Deferred income tax RIEFTSH 157 2,221
12,843 16,577

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the effective tax rate applicable to
profits of the companies comprising the Group as follows:

5 68 7 5% 181 B Tt A g M) A 750 TR B 5 L AR I AR
SEETARSMNNBERREFENERDE

MARER  #omT

2014 2013
—ZE—mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Profit before income tax W P45 35 A1 69,877 65,102
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate ZE AR R EDE R BB A
applicable to profits in PRC (25%) TR (25%)5T B KA 17,469 16,276
Effect of difference between Hong Kong BEMEHEEERBERE
income tax rate and domestic tax rate ERNTE 202 309
Effect of preferential corporate income tax rate  EE M EESHEERNTE (6,146) (2,526)
Super deduction for research and B REsEEm
development expenses (952) -
Change of tax rates S (1,099) 33
Withholding tax A 2,737 1,173
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose A HF RS 632 1,312
Income tax expense FriSRiF X 12,843 16,577
Effective tax rate BERBE 18% 25%
KB FTM AR AR]
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For the year ended

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Company Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Enterprises incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to profits
tax rates of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%).

PRC corporate income tax

Enterprises incorporated in the PRC are generally subject to
income tax rates of 25% (2013: 25%) except for enterprises
with approval for preferential rate (Note (d) below).

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its
operations in the PRC has been calculated at the applicable
tax rate on the estimated assessable profits based on
existing legislations, interpretations and practices.

Since the deferred income tax assets and liabilities shall be
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the assets is realised or the liability is settled, the
change in the applicable tax rate will affect the determination
of the carrying values of deferred tax assets and liabilities of
the Group’s subsidiaries located in the PRC.

Tax effect of reduced tax rate

Certain subsidiaries of the Group enjoyed preferential
income tax rates and have obtained approvals from the
relevant tax authorities in the PRC. Yongsheng Dyeing
obtained the certificate of qualifying as “advanced
technology company” in 2012 and is subject to 15%
corporate income tax rate for three years from 2012 to
2014. Yongsheng Chemical Fiber obtained the certificate of
qualifying as “advanced technology company” in 2014 and
is subject to 15% corporate income tax rate for three years
from 2014 to 2016.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014

29. FREHAX (&)
FREREMEH

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ARRRAEHEREMEFREAFE
A REREBRAR B ER
REMREREMEH-

BFEMNED

REBTMR TN CEBEMNNERE
16.5% (ZZF—=F :16.5% ) HiFi -

HEIREREHR

AR B R S A1 2 — IRFT S R R
25% (T — =4 :25% ) B - HEJE L
ZHEEEFEHLZEAKRIN (R T
FEd)) e

AEBEN P B KEEL RN
BEDIREBERBZEDN RERENER
Rt ERBE NI ER R R E -

HNERABREE B ERRASRE
ARBREEHFERBEFEOH KRG
B HERRENED BT EMETH
AEBTENERARNEERBEER
BERMEE-

BT RIOBIS

AEEETHBRARAZHEEEMGH
o WERSH HEBERISKE 2 JhE -
KBRLABR - FES[SHEM
TEIEEFE TAT——FE_Z
—FE = FER15% 2 CEMBHEY
FleokBLMN —T—NEES SR
¥ EREE YE-_T—NFE=
T NEZFEHEI5% 2 D EMBRE
BH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—=F

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

B Ot B R M
—mEF=AS+—ALFE

29. FREBiF < (&)

(d) Tax effect of reduced tax rate (Continued) (d BHETHANRBEE (F)

The effective corporate income tax rate for the companies ? ERGEEGFBENAAINERDEERR
with tax preferential treatment are as follows: FHEMAT:

2014 2013

—=E-F ke

Yongsheng Chemical Fiber K BAL 15% 25%
Yongsheng Dyeing KR LR 15% 15%
No tax reductions and exemptions were granted to the other RAREFEOEMMBRRNEBEES
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC for years ended 31 E-NER-FE—Z=ZF+=-HA=+—H
December 2014 and 2013. FEERBERTRERRN#AR -
PRC withholding income tax (e) HEFEMNMER

(e)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on the dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of their earnings generated from the date
when these subsidiaries became foreign owned enterprises
in the PRC. As at 31 December 2014, deferred tax liabilities
of approximately RMB4,836,000 (2013:RMB4,836,000)
has not been recognised for withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC, as the directors do not intend to
declare any dividends out of these unremitted earnings for
the subsidiaries.

REFPEPCEMRSNE ERBIH
SNEREMBIMNEEE T IR E A
M10% BRI - BRAMER T\ F—
A—HBEF BRAR_ZETLF+=
A=Z+—B&OEF - W EEGINE
EEMBNERRET BB KL - A0 g
BRAREMNENRE - AEEERmMAEN
BEARERZ SR B S AT B A Al B 1%
EXATEIRANIERESEE AR
ik B A & 1) BT R 35 /O AR B A TR A0 E -
RZE—NF+_A=+—H K3}
REBMRFENE R RENSBF
BFZAMBEINRERECHIEAEL

AR#4,836,000c (ZE—=F: AR
#4,836,0007T) " RA BE S I T HKE

B8 A B B0 % F R EE 1 & A P B IR ()

QL
RS o

KEFTMRIA R AR
201445k
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30. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/ 30. SME (FB) WBRFBE
GAINS

The exchange differences (charged)/credited in the consolidated TEapRalaER (k) GTARER 28
statement of comprehensive income are included as follows: R
2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBF T
Other (losses)/gains, net (Note 24) Hih (F8) W FE
(Pt sE24) (708) 1,207
Net exchange (losses)/gains on BEEBN M INE (F518)
financing activities (Note 28) iz %8 (fI5E28) (517) 1,013
(1,225) 2,220
31. EARNINGS PER SHARE 31. ERER
(a) Basic (@) EXR
Basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December BT NEFE=ZZT—=F+=A
2014 and 2013 is calculated by dividing the profit =+ —HEFENFRERERFN TR
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted NEEEAEEEFBRUEBEITERR
average number of ordinary shares in issue. In determining HMEFHEHE RETHE-S—=
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FH+Z_A=Zt+—BLEFEMNBEITLE
during the year ended 31 December 2013, the 297,327,010 EmEFEHEE B AR —=F
shares issued and allotted through capitalisation of the FT—AZ+tRA LM (MFE17(0)) BiER
share premium account of the Company upon Listing on 27 BAREAR QB R0 = ERRATE 1T R A8
November 2013 (Note 17 (b)) have been regarded as if these #)297,327, 010/ fix 7 - M52 5 i1 B
shares were in issue since 1 January 2013. ZE—=F—-HA—HERETHUET

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB AR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(a) Basic (Continued)

31.

BRERN (&)
(@ BEX& (&)

2014 2013
—E-QNF —F—=

Profit attributable to the shareholders of 7N A &1 A% 5 FE 165 5 F

the Company (RMB’000) (AR®TFT) 47,897 40,024
Weighted average number of EEITEBRMETIH

ordinary shares in issue 400,000,000 309,589,041
Basic earnings per share FRRE AR ZF

(RMB per share) (BRARET) 0.12 0.13

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The fully diluted earnings per share for years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 are the same as the basic
earnings per share as there are no dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

(b) #F

SREERFEBBEEHTERRM
W B R 30 B R T M B
R -

HRBE—T-—NER_ZT—=F+_
A=+t —BUIFEIEHILEEELR
oAtk #gRN 8 RER
AR -

KEEFTMEERAR]
201445k
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For the year ended

32. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENTS

(@) Reconciliation of cash generated from/

(used in) operations

32. R ERERME

(@) BEFE/(FFA)REYR

2014 2013
—E-mF ZE—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Profit before income tax MR B B AR R 69,877 65,102
Adjustments for: PATIEE (EH M %
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME - -BE X
equipment (Note 7) RAEITE (HF7) 12,262 11,641
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) — == 3ty & FR 42 6 4 (FfT556) 817 798
— Amortisation of intangible assets — | A EE (E8)
(Note 8) 808 883
— Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, —H&EYZE - HiE MR EEE,
plant and equipment (Note 24) (Wezm) (FIzE24) 116 (174)
— Provision for impairment of receivables  — & WK IB B (B B 18 (I 5E25)
(Note 25) 12 367
— Provision for write-down of inventories  — 7% & #fls = H A £ 35 J% &
to their net realisable value (Note 25) Bt (Kizr25) 2,279 133
— Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) —SNEESIE, (e ) FE 1,053 (896)
— Interest income (Note 28) —F BUA (FF5E28) (2,480) (6,897)
— Interest expenses (Note 28) —HMEMZ (H5E28) 5,266 20,630
Operating profits before working LEESEHAMELE R
capital changes 90,010 91,587
Changes in working capital: HEEEY:
~ Inventories 78 23,053 37,622
— Trade and bills receivables — B HRYGRIA R R EE (3,064) 118,822
— Prepayments, financial assets at fair ~ — BT3B I A FEFTA
value through profit or loss and BEaemEEk
other receivables H b R UL 3R T8 8,337 31,810
— Trade payables —B SRR (11,294) (119,401)
— Advance receipts from customers —TEEWIMEFFIA (953) (142,432)
— Accruals and other payables —FEET AR R H AL FE S 3R 5,242 (27,284)
Cash flow generated KEmE (FMA)RAERE
from/(used in) operations 111,331 (9,276)
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32. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

and equipment comprise:

In the consolidated cash flow statement,
proceeds from disposal of property, plant

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORI RAR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

32. G BRERERME (F)

(b) GHBESHERA HEME-
BER RGN ERERE:

2014 2013
—F-mEF —F—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AR F T

Net book amount disposed (Note 7) P iH & AR E (MEE7) 375 2,308
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BEREED

plant and equipment (Note 24) (E518) /Wzs (MisE24) (116) 174
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  HERZRED

plant and equipment Fr5 3/ 1E 259 2,482

33. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid by the Company for year ended 31
December 2014 and 2013. A dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2014 of HK$0.0400 (equivalent to RMB0.0317) per
share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$16,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB12,668,000), is to be proposed at the annual general
meeting on 20 May 2015. These financial statements do not reflect

this dividend payable.

33. KB

HE-_Z—NFER-_FT—=F+=ZA=+—
AIFEFE ARARYERNBRE - R_F—H
FRAAZTERITHREBFARS £ 8%
MEBEE_Z-HNE+_A=+—BIEEK
A% B & 1%0.04007 T (B E R ARME0.0317
JT) c HAPE B 4 EE 516,000,000/ 7T (HE R A

R #12,668,0007T ) ° 7% % W 15 & £ I & 2 Bk

S IE FEAT AR o

2014 2013
—2-mE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFT
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.0400 R R AR B FK
(equivalent to RMB0.0317) (2013: HKS$nil) 3 8%0.040078 7T
per ordinary share (FHERARY0.03177T)
(ZZE—=F:ZT%71) 12,668 -
KB FTM AR AR]
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34. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at each balance sheet

34, H&iE
BAREE

(a)

MNEHEERAERIHNERREENERRFL

dates, but not yet incurred is as follows: /N
2014 2013
—E-IF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBF T
Property, plant and equipment Y- RERH 1,678 -
Operating lease commitments (b) K&EHERE
The Group leases certain office premises under non- REBRBETAIFHLLTEEHZER
cancellable operating lease agreements. ETHRAEYE-
The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments to REBBEREEBETHNERERE
be paid under non-cancellable operating leases contracted BEMNTAEHELCERAESTFIEHER
for at the balance sheet dates but not recognised as liabilities REERBENFBEROT
were as follows:
2014 2013
—E—E —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Not later than 1 year TIBR—F 848 1,066
Later than 1 year and no later than EBER—FRTMERRASF
5 years 504 995
1,352 2,061

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
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35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B Ot SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

OPERATING LEASE 35. REHE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental receipts in respect of BRATAI R EHEE THEEEN R R &K
warehouses in the PRC under non-cancellable operating leases EELOHESBGRBRENT

are as follows:

2014 2013
—E-lmEF —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
No later than 1 year TEBR—F 7 1,277
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years BR—FERTERAEF 3 10
10 1,287
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEAIRS
The Directors are of the view that the following companies are EZERBUATRAANEREBEET
related parties of the Group:
Name Relationship with the Group
£ B E BRI 7
Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Limited Controlled by the Controlling Shareholders
MM KEEEBRA A 478 R P BR 422
HUVIS Corporation and its subsidiary Joint venture partner and its subsidiary
A FHHUVIS KR H I E A 7 EEMEEHRANBAF
Hangzhou Xiaoshan HongChang Chemical Fiber Controlled by Mr. Li Zhihong, one of the individual shareholders of
Co.,Ltd. the Group
MMELZEE(CEBRRAF AN S B A9 B A BRR 2 — R S AR IR
KEFTMEBR AR

201445k
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEARS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Transactions with related parties (@) EREFNRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRZEA G TEIRR E i 5 P
statements, the Group had the following significant BN REEEBEEFETUATERR
transactions with related parties: VE
()  Purchase of goods () HEESR
2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
HUVIS Corporation and R EHHUVIS R E @ 2 A
its subsidiary 36,698 49,002
Hangzhou Xiaoshan HongChang ~ #N #& L = S L # B R A 7]
Chemical Fiber Co.,Ltd. - 4174
36,698 53,176
(i) Rental income (i) HELKA
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Hangzhou Yongsheng MK EEER AT
Group Limited 574 905
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORI RAR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with related parties
(Continued)

(iijj Storage fee paid to related party

36. BELXS (&)

(a)

HEELTNXS (F)

(i) BHEESZHFEER

2014 2013
—F-ImF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Hangzhou Yongsheng MM KEREBEFRAF
Group Limited 110 309
(iv) Purchase of property, plant and equipment (iv) BEY¥: BERZE
2014 2013
—E-QmF —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFT
Hangzhou Yongsheng TN EE R A A
Group Limited 353 -

(b) Year-end balance arising from related
party transactions

(b)

BEIRZELENFRER

The Group had the following significant trade balance with its AEBERHBAEIFNERESEHRN
related party: N
2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Due to related party: JEA<F 2 75 RROE
HUVIS Corporation KA g HHUVIS 5,990 7,513

All balance with related party is unsecured and bears no
interest.

FRERBETNERSEERLRRE

KEEFTMEIERAR]
201445k
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Year-end balance arising from related
party transactions (Continued)

Details of amount due from Mr. Li Cheng, a director is as

. BELRS (&)

(b) Eﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ’ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%
&

EWEEFHEENFANFBOT

follows:
Maximum
At beginning of outstanding
Year ended 31 December At end of the year the year during the year Terms
FRAERS
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE FR F1) RENEE FH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT AREFT ARBFT
2013 - 6,482 6,482 The balance was unsecured
and interest free, which was
repayable on demand.
—E—=F EHABERREES EREX
@i
2014 - - -
—T-mF
(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEEERM
2014 2013
—E-QmF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Salary and allowances e MoREh 2,397 1,265
Discretionary bonus B IE e 4L 3,800 328
Social security insurance HERERR 155 59
6,352 1,652
37. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET 37. FEHESEH

DATE

On 6 January 2015, the Company granted options to acquire
15,000,000 ordinary shares to certain directors and employees at
exercise price of HK$1.480 (equivalent to RMB1.185) per share
(expiry date: 5 January 2025).

1 7 8 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFMBHE

RESULTS ¥E
For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=1+-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mE —T-=F ZT-CF —Z——F —E-%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTI AREFL AREF ARBT
Revenue W& 1,379,008 1,767,423 2,210,853 2,037,346 1,565,630
Gross profit ] 141,019 128,837 100,145 114,400 137,624
Operating profit "R 73,180 77,822 58,788 93,231 119,378
Finance costs, net RERAEE (3,303) (12,720) (19,740) (12,972) (12,480)
Profit before income tax BRATEH AR 69,877 65,102 39,048 80,259 106,398
Income tax expense Fresimx (12,843) (16,577) (6,061) (20,248) (23,969)
Profit for the year £ RRF 57,034 48525 32,087 60,011 82,930
Attributable to: BATIEB &R
Shareholders of the Company ERARR 47,897 40,024 23173 54,206 78,217
Non-controlling interests FERES 9,137 8,501 9,814 5,805 4,713
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted EXREE
(RMB per share) (BRAR¥T) 0.12 0.13 0.08 0.18 0.26
KM R AR AE
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERER

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

—E-ImF —E-=fF —E--F —E——F —E-%F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBF T ARBTFTL ARBETTL ARBTT

Non-current assets FRBEE 179,863 178,423 190,113 198,575 194,899

Current assets RBEE 368,784 545,028 891,166 1,071,870 968,688

Total assets HEE 548,647 723,451 1,081,279 1,270,445 1,163,587

Current liabilities RBEE (166,084) (368,178) (829,977) (1,060,990) (1,016,544)

Non-current liabilities kRBEE (12,325) (38,132) (59,970) (9,565) (19,002)

Total liabilities BEAE (178,409) (406,310) (889,947) (1,070,555) (1,035,546)

EQUITY i 4

Equity attributable to shareholders K72 RIS B 5 125

of the Company 339,942 292,507 175,199 163,886 97,842

Non-controlling interests FERER 30,296 24,634 16,133 36,004 30,199

Total equity ERAE 370,238 317,141 191,332 199,890 128,041

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19 April
2012 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
and consolidated balance sheets of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010, 2011 and 2012 have been prepared as if the current
group structure had been existed throughout the years.

The financial results of the company for the year ended 31 December
2010, 2011 and 2012 and financial position as at 31 December 2010,
2011 and 2012 are extracted from the Company’s IPO Share Offer
prospectus dated 15 November 2013.
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RARRZE——FMA+NBERSHES MK
JoMAEEBE_ST—EF 2 ——FRK=F
—ZFF+Z A=t HLEFENEHRAERERR
AEHEEEBRCEENRREERBERNZESF
EA—EGFEmEE-

ARABE-_FT—ZTF —FT——FR-_ZT—=-F
T A= —HALFENMBEERN T —TF -
ZE—FRZFE-F+ A=+ —HHHHMR
MEBEARRAHA-T—=F+—A+AAB
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